
 
 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF COUNCIL MEETING 
 

You are summoned to attend a meeting of Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council to be 
held in the Council Chamber - Civic Centre, at 2.30 pm on Thursday, 14 July 2016 to 

transact the following business:- 
 
1.   To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 26 May 2016 (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
 

2.   Official Announcements  
(announcements may be made by the Mayor, Leader of the Council or the Chief 
Executive) 

 
 

3.   Petitions  
(to receive petitions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 10) 

 
 

4.   Questions from Members of the Public  
(to consider any questions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 7) 

 
 

5.   Recruitment of Chief Executive and Interim Arrangements (Pages 7 - 8) 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM CABINET  
 
 
6.   Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017/18 - 2021/22 (Pages 9 - 62) 

 
 

All Members of the Council My Ref: LCS-DLDS-DS-C-022 
 Your Ref:  
   
 Contact Karen Robson 
 Tel: 0191 4332129 
   
 Date: 6 July 2016 

Public Document Pack



 

7.   Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators 2016/17 - First Quarter Review 
(Pages 63 - 80) 
 
 

8.   Review of the Constitution (Pages 81 - 94) 
 
 

9.   Report from the Cabinet (Pages 95 - 104) 
 
 

MOTIONS AND QUESTIONS  
 
 
10.   Notice of Motion  

(to consider any notices of motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 
9.1) 

 
 
10(a)  Notice of Motion - Hate Crime (Pages 105 - 106) 

 
10(a)(i) Notice of Motion - Alteration (Pages 107 - 108) 

(Motion altered in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12.2) 

 
10(b)  Notice of Motion - Changes to Pensions (Pages 109 - 110) 

 
 

11.   Questions  
(to deal with any questions submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 8.1) 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Jane Robinson 
Chief Executive 

 



 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Thursday, 26 May 2016 
 

 
PRESENT: THE MAYOR COUNCILLOR A THOMPSON (CHAIR) 
  
 Councillors: P Dillon, R Beadle, M Brain, L Caffrey, B Clelland, 

P Craig, S Craig, D Davidson, W Dick, S Dickie, C Donovan, 
A Douglas, D Duggan, John Eagle, K Ferdinand, M Foy, P Foy, 
M Gannon, A Geddes, B Goldsworthy, M Goldsworthy, M Graham, 
S Green, G Haley, M Hall, J Hamilton, S Hawkins, M Henry, 
M Hood, H Hughes, J Kielty, J Lee, P Maughan, J McClurey, 
J McElroy, C McHatton, C McHugh, E McMaster, M McNestry, 
P Mole, B Oliphant, C Ord, M Ord, I Patterson, S Ronchetti, 
J Simpson, J Turnbull, L Twist, J Wallace, N Weatherley, A Wheeler 
and K Wood 

  
APOLOGIES: Councillors: C Bradley, M Charlton, J Graham, T Graham, J Green, 

L Green, K McCartney, R Mullen and C Simcox 
 
 
 
Father Jeffrey Dodds, from St Philip Neri, Dunston to gave the opening address. 
 
 
CL10   TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD 21 APRIL AND 20 MAY 

2016  
 

 COUNCIL RESOLVED -    That the minutes of the meetings held 21 April and 20 
May 2016 be approved as a correct record. 

 
 

CL11   OFFICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 Cabinet Portfolio Appointments 

  
The Leader confirmed the Cabinet Portfolio appointments, details of which had 
previously been circulated. 
 
 

CL12   PETITIONS  
 

 Councillor Wood submitted a petition on behalf of private hire vehicle drivers about 
the effects of the proposed approach to civil bus lane enforcement in Gateshead. 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

CL13   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 

 There were no questions from members of the public. 
 
 

CL14   OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMMES 2016-17  
 

 Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees work programmes for 2016-17. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED -    That the provisional work programmes for the Overview 

and Scrutiny Committees for 2016/2017 be approved. 
 
 

CL15   DOMICILIARY CARE - THE FUTURE MODEL FOR ENABLEMENT AND THE 
RESTRUCTURING OF IN-HOUSE DOMICILIARY CARE SERVICES  
 

 Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of the proposals to retain the 
in-house domiciliary care service while adopting more efficient working 
arrangements and transfer part of it into the enhanced enablement service. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED -    That the Council continue to deliver domiciliary care 

services through enablement and longer term provision, 
and for consultations to continue with the trade unions 
and workforce on the application of more efficient 
working arrangements. 

  
 

CL16   CIVIL BUS LANE ENFORCEMENT IN GATESHEAD  
 

 Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of the introduction of bus lane 
traffic contraventions in Gateshead and to set the charge level for the contraventions 
and to nominate a Councillor to the Bus Lane Adjudication Joint Committee. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED       i) That the Code of Practice relating to the use of CCTV 

for Civil Parking and Bus Lane Enforcement and 
connected purposes, as set out in Appendix 4 of the 
attached report be approved 

  
ii) That the Constitution be amended to give delegated 
authority to the Service Director, Development, Public 
Protection and Transport Strategy, in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport, to 
carry out the statutory procedure to introduce and 
operate civil bus lane enforcement and to make such 
technical amendments to the Council’s Code of Practice 
for CCTV Enforcement as may be required to comply 
with changes to national legislation or guidance, or 
decisions of the Traffic Penalty Tribunal 

  

Page 4



 

iii) That the level of Penalty Charge for bus lane 
contraventions at £60 be approved 

  
iv) That the appointment of the Cabinet Member for 
Environment and Transport to the Bus Lane Adjudication 
Joint Committee be noted. 

 
 

CL17   REPORT FROM THE CABINET  
 

 The Leader of the Council reported on a number of key issues currently affecting the 
Council. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED -    That the information be noted  
  
  

CL18   NOTICE OF MOTION  
 

 Councillor Wallace moved the following motion: 
  
“This Council calls on the Chief Executive to produce and bring forward, at the 
earliest opportunity, a briefing for members on the financial implications to 
Gateshead Council of the decision to be a Non-Consenting Authority and to 
withdraw from the North East devolution settlement.  This Council also calls on the 
Chief Executive to arrange a meeting of the Corporate Resources Advisory Group 
so that all members can discuss the contents of the briefing.” 
  
 Councillor M Gannon moved the following amendment: 
  
Delete all after “This council” to “North East devolution settlement” and insert... 
  
“notes that it agreed to the October 2015 “Devolution Agreement” on the 
understanding that government would provide a fair funding settlement to north east 
councils. The council therefore calls on the Chief Executive to produce and bring 
forward, at the earliest opportunity, a briefing for members on the fairness or 
otherwise of the 2016/17 settlement both for Gateshead and the 7 NECA authorities. 
The report should include analysis for the cumulative impact of any unfairness 
across the period 2010 to 2017” 
  
On the amendment being put it was declared to be carried. 
  
The amendment was put as the substantive motion and duly carried. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED –  
  
“This Council notes that it agreed to the October 2015 “Devolution Agreement” on 
the understanding that government would provide a fair funding settlement to north 
east councils. The council therefore calls on the Chief Executive to produce and 
bring forward, at the earliest opportunity, a briefing for members on the fairness or 
otherwise of the 2016/17 settlement both for Gateshead and the 7 NECA authorities. 

Page 5



 

The report should include analysis for the cumulative impact of any unfairness 
across the period 2010 to 2017 North East devolution settlement.  This Council also 
calls on the Chief Executive to arrange a meeting of the Corporate Resources 
Advisory Group so that all members can discuss the contents of the briefing.” 
  
 

CL19   QUESTIONS  
 

 There were no questions received. 
 

 
 
 

Page 6



 

 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

14 July 2016 

  

RECRUITMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

AND INTERIM ARRANGEMENTS 

 

Jane Robinson, Chief Executive 

 
Executive Summary 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval for interim arrangements 

covering the period between the departure of the current Chief 
Executive, Jane Robinson, on 29 July 2016, and the recruitment of a 
permanent replacement. 

 
Background 
 
2. In accordance with her contact of employment, Jane Robinson has 

given notice that, after eleven years with the Council, including four as 
Chief Executive, she will be leaving on 15 August 2016 to take up the 
role of Chief Operating Officer at Durham University. Jane’s last working 
day at the Council will be Friday 29 July 2016.  

 
3. Under the Council’s Constitution, the post of Chief Executive fulfils the 

Council’s statutory duty to designate an officer as its head of paid 
service (s4, Local Government & Housing Act 1989). 
 

Recruitment of Chief Executive 
 
4. Under the Council’s Employee Recruitment Rules, the appointment of 

the Chief Executive must be approved by full Council (in accordance 
with the Local Government & Housing Act 1989) following a 
recommendation being made by the Special Appointments Committee. 
The Committee will therefore deal with the shortlisting and interview 
process before making its recommendation. (Additional steps may be 
added to the process to support the Committee’s recommendation: e.g. 
an officer interview to inform a recommended shortlist.) 
 

5. As with all recruitment in local government, the appointment of the Chief 
Executive must be entirely on merit (s7, Local Government & Housing 
Act 1989). 
 

6. Unless full Council agrees otherwise, the Employee Recruitment Rules 
require that an external advertisement is placed for the post ‘… in such 
a way as is likely to bring it to the attention of persons who are qualified 
to apply for it.’ (Rule 2(b)). 
 Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 
7. The recruitment process will be commenced as soon as possible, 

following consultation with the Leader of the Council. However, there is 
likely to be a gap of at least three months between Jane’s departure 
and a new chief executive commencing in their role; therefore, pending 
the making of a permanent appointment to the post, the Council should 
consider interim arrangements. 

 
Proposal 

 
8. Following consideration of all options, including an external appointment 

of an interim senior manager, it is considered that the interests of the 
Council would be best served by making an interim appointment from 
the Council’s current chief officers: this will enable a higher degree of 
continuity for the Council during a period of significant change and 
uncertainty (including the Council’s Change Programme and 
Devolution) and allows for greater flexibility over the duration of the 
interim arrangements. 
 

9. Of the potential candidates, it is proposed that Mike Barker, Strategic 
Director, Corporate Service & Governance, be appointed Interim Chief 
Executive. Mike is the longest serving chief officer, having joined the 
Council in 2000 and being appointed as Strategic Director, Legal & 
Corporate Services and Solicitor to the Council in 2008. (Mike was also 
Interim Assistant Chief Executive for six months during Jane’s maternity 
leave.) 
 

Recommendation 
 

10. Council is asked to: 
 
(i) note that the Chief Executive, Jane Robinson, leaves the Council on 

15 August 2016; 
 

(ii) note the recruitment process to be followed to identify a permanent 
replacement; and 
 

(iii)  agree that Mike Barker be appointed as Interim Chief Executive and 
head of paid service until a permanent replacement commences 
their term of office. 

 

Page 8



 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

14 July 2016 
 

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2017/18 – 2021/22 
 

Jane Robinson, Chief Executive 

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and Governance 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
  

1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2017/18 to 2021/22. 
 

2. The Council’s current Medium Term Financial Strategy for the period 2016/17 
to 2020/21 was approved by Council in July 2015 and was refreshed in 
January 2016 following the provisional Local Government Finance settlement. 
 

3. The proposed Medium Term Financial Strategy now covers a five year period 
and will be reviewed at least annually.  This presents a very challenging 
financial position over the medium term as a result of assumptions concerning 
future government funding.  The indicative budget forecasts within the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy show an estimated funding gap of around £92.3m for 
the period 2017/18 to 2021/22 with an estimated gap of £57.9m for the first 
two years.  This position assumes that all 2016/17 in year savings are fully 
achieved within the financial year. 
 

4. The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report 
including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating 
their recommendation. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5. It is recommended that Council: 

 

i) Approve the Medium Term Financial Strategy for 20174/18 to 2021/22 
 

ii) Notes the review of both general fund and strategic earmarked Council 
reserves 
 

iii) Notes that the Strategic Director, Corporate Resources, following  
consultation with the Chief Executive, will continue to produce and 
monitor on an annual basis, a rolling programme of five-year budget 
forecasts taking account of the key issues facing the Council 

 
iv) Notes that the Strategic Director, Corporate Resources, following 

consultation with the Chief Executive will continue to keep under review 
and update the Medium Term Financial Strategy as appropriate to 
respond to Government policy and funding announcements 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 of 5  

 

  REPORT TO CABINET 

  12 July 2016  
 

TITLE OF REPORT: Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017/18 – 2021/22 
 
REPORT OF:  Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Corporate Resources 
 
 

Purpose of the Report  
 

1. To request Cabinet to recommend to Council the approval of the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2017/18 to 2021/22.  The MTFS is fundamental to effective 
financial planning within the Council as it sets the financial context for the Council’s 
resource allocation and budget setting and ensures that resources are assigned to 
priority outcomes within the Council Plan. 

 

Background 
 

2. The current MTFS was agreed by Council on 16 July 2015. The MTFS was prepared 
with no indicative funding forecasts from central government and showed an 
estimated funding gap of £77.7m for the period 2016/17 to 2020/21. A refresh of the 
funding gap, following the Local Government Finance Settlement 2016/17, was 
reported to Cabinet on 19 January 2016. 
 

3. Within the 2016/17 settlement the Government provided some details of indicative 
funding up to 2019/20 which gave a high level indication of revenue support grant 
funding. However uncertainty still exists in respect of likely Government funding levels 
in relation to other grants over the period as well as instability that arises from the 
volatility of business rates funding and the implications of the move towards a 
proposed new funding regime of 100% rate retention.  
 

4. The prospect of continuing reductions in Government funding, presents an increasing 
challenge to the Council’s medium to long term financial sustainability. The current 
context is that over £130 million of budget savings have been identified and taken 
from Council budgets since 2010 and demand pressures in key services continue to 
grow. By the end of 2017/18 the Council’s grant funding will have reduced by 
approximately 46% from 2010. This equates to over a £380 per head reduction and 
over an £800 per dwelling reduction in Government funding over the period.  

 
5. This report reviews the principles of the MTFS for Cabinet to consider and make a 

recommendation to Council. It also updates budget forecast models taking into 
consideration government funding for 2016/17, assumptions on funding for 2017/18 to 
2021/22 based on estimates and assumptions around service and corporate 
pressures. The MTFS also includes a review of the reserves policy of the Council.  

 

6. The Council MTFS will inform the approach to the budget framework for 2017/18 and 
for subsequent years. 

 
7. The Council will continue to keep the MTFS under review as a consequence of the 

high degree of uncertainty surrounding the potential impact on Government policies 
and Government funding decisions arising from the European referendum result. 

 
 

Page 11



 2 of 5  

 

Proposal 
 
8. The proposed MTFS for 2017/18 to 2021/22 is attached at Appendix 2. This presents 

a very challenging financial position over the medium term as a result of assumptions 
concerning future government funding. The indicative budget forecasts within the 
MTFS show an estimated funding gap of around £92.3m for the period 2017/18 to 
2021/22 with an estimated gap of £57.9m for the first two years. This position 
assumes that all 2016/17 in year savings are fully achieved within the financial year.  

 
9. To assist in meeting the challenges ahead the principles which underpin the MTFS 

have been reviewed and these are proposed as follows: 
 

1. The overall financial strategy will be to ensure that the Council’s resources are 
directed to achieving Vision 2030 and the outcomes set out in the Council Plan. 
The Council’s MTFS will be reviewed on at least an annual basis. 

 

2. Overall Council spending should be contained within original estimates.  If, 
following monthly revenue monitoring, service budgets are projected to exceed 
original estimates, plans should be prepared setting out the actions required to 
ensure spending at the end of the year does not exceed original estimates. 

 

3. The Council will maintain its general reserve at a minimum of 3% of the net 
revenue budget to cover any major unforeseen expenditure. The Council will aim 
to balance its revenue budget over the period of the MTFS without reliance on the 
use of the general reserve.   

 

4. The Council will maintain earmarked reserves for specific purposes which are 
consistent with achieving its key priorities. The use and level of earmarked 
reserves will be reviewed at least annually. 

 

5. The Council will continue to improve its approach to efficiency, commissioning and 
procurement to ensure value for money and minimise the impact of budget savings 
on priority services as well as effectively managing the programme of change.  

 

6. Opportunities for working in collaboration and partnership and different ways of 
working will be identified and developed where this will support the delivery of the 
Council’s outcomes and improve service efficiency and delivery.  This will include 
the use of well-being powers, development of trading opportunities and different 
business models and the sourcing and securing of external funding.   

 

7. The Council will consider the use of prudential borrowing to support capital 
investment to deliver Vision 2030 and will ensure that the full costs of borrowing 
are taken into account when investment decisions are taken. 

 

8. The Council will aim to promote and stimulate strong and sustainable economic 
growth leading to wellbeing and prosperity for residents and communities and this 
will be supported by a planned approach to strategic investment managed through 
the Council’s capital programme. 

 

9. The Council recognises the impact of increases in Council tax levels and fees and 
charges in an area of relatively low income and low wealth and will therefore 
balance the need for increases against the delivery of Vision 2030 and demand for 
services.  

 

Page 12



 3 of 5  

 

Reserves Review 
 

10. Following the 2015/16 Revenue Outturn, at 31 March 2016, the Council’s usable 
revenue reserves are £60.043m. Of this sum, £25.232m is held in strategic earmarked 
reserves and £16.341m Council General Reserve. The remaining balance of 
£18.470m is ring-fenced and cannot be used to support the revenue budget and 
Council Tax requirement. A full review of reserves was carried out as part of the 
preparation of the MTFS.  

 
Recommendations 
 
11. Cabinet is requested to recommend to Council: 
 

(i) the approval of the Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2017/18 to 2021/22 
 

(ii) to note the review of both general fund and strategic earmarked Council 
reserves  

 
(iii) to note that the Strategic Director, Corporate Resources, following consultation 

with the Chief Executive, will continue to produce and monitor on an annual 
basis, a rolling programme of five-year budget forecasts taking account of the 
key issues facing the Council 

 

(iv) to note that the Strategic Director, Corporate Resources, following consultation 
with the Chief Executive will continue to keep under review and update the 
MTFS as appropriate to respond to Government policy and funding 
announcements. 

 
 For the following reasons:- 
 

i) to contribute to the good financial management practice of the Council; 
 
ii) to assist the financial sustainability of the Council over the medium to long term. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CONTACT:    Darren Collins     Ext. 3582  

Page 13



 4 of 5  

 

   
  APPENDIX 1 
 
 Policy Context  
 
1. The MTFS is the mechanism for supporting the redirection of resources to deliver 

Vision 2030 and the Council Plan. It also ensures a sustainable Gateshead through 
best use of resources to deliver value for money services and long term financial 
stability in a challenging financial environment. 

 
  Background 
  

2. The Council’s current MTFS for the period 2016/17 to 2020/21 was approved by 
Council in July 2015 and was refreshed in January 2016 following the provisional 
Local Government Finance settlement. The MTFS  covers a five year period and is 
reviewed at least annually. 

 
3. The MTFS is a key part of the Council’s Policy, Service Planning and Performance 

Management framework, which aims to ensure that all revenue resources are directed 
towards corporate priorities and the delivery of Vision 2030 and the Council Plan. It is 
based on a financial forecast over a rolling five-year timeframe to 2021/22 which will 
help ensure resources are aligned to priorities in the refreshed Council Plan. The 
Strategy describes the financial direction of the Council and outlines the estimated 
financial pressures over this five year period. 

 
4. Medium term financial planning is taking place against the background of significant 

funding cuts for local government. In addition, the Council, in common with most local 
authorities, continues to be at risk from financial pressures, including workforce 
management, waste management, demand for social care and welfare reform. This 
environment will challenge the ability of the Council to respond to the needs of 
Gateshead Residents and the wider community. 

 
5. The current MTFS has been reviewed in line with the above issues and updated 

accordingly.  The MTFS 2017/18 to 2021/22 is attached at Appendix 2 and outlines a 
strategy to deal with a funding gap of around £57.9m for the two year period 2017/18 
and 2018/19.  The overall five-year funding gap over the life of the MTFS is estimated 
at around £92.3m.  In order to set a balanced budget each year all funding options will 
need to be considered, including:  
 

 Budget savings 

 Retained business rates from economic growth 

 Realignment of spending priorities with the Council Plan 2015-20 

 Capacity building within communities 

 Additional external funding 

 Additional income including a review of current and potential areas of trading 

 Council tax increases 

 Use of reserves 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 5 of 5  

 

6. The Council response to the challenging financial context is contained within the 
change programme and this is built upon an approach which aligns to the Council 
Plan with a focus on four inter-related areas: economic growth, managing demand, 
collective responsibility and efficiency by: 
 

 Doing all we can to support economic growth and revenue generation – given 
reductions in central government funding, success in this area will enable the 
Council to redirect resource to activities which protect the most vulnerable. 

 Focusing on managing demand (particularly in social care) with a targeted 
approach, emphasising early intervention and prevention. 

 Increasing collective responsibility – encouraging and supporting local people, 
partner organisations, businesses and local communities to play a more active 
role in achieving the outcomes for Gateshead. 

 Continuing to drive efficiencies through changes to the way the Council works, for 
example, through exploiting new technology, consolidation of buildings and 
services, reducing complex processes and increased trading. 

   

Consultation and Equalities Impact 
 

7. The MTFS sets a financial context for budget consultation. Council has agreed a 
budget consultation process which takes account of the Equality Act 2010 and the 
Government’s code of practice regarding consultation. 

 

8. The Leader of the Council has been consulted on this report. 
  

  Alternative Options 
 

9. There are no alternative options. 
 

  Implications of Recommended Option  
 

10. Resources 
 

a. Financial Implications - the Strategic Director, Corporate Resources confirms 
that the financial implications are as contained within the MTFS. 

 

b. Human Resource Implications – The need to support Council employees as 
much as possible through changes arising from the MTFS principles set out in 
this report is recognised. 

 

c. Property Implications – No direct property implications. 
 

11. Risk Management Implication – The risk implications are contained within Section 
16 of the MTFS. 

 

12. Equality and Diversity Implications – An equality impact framework has been 
developed to asses budget proposals  

 

13. Crime and Disorder Implications – No direct crime and disorder implications. 
 

14. Health Implications – No direct health implications. 
 

15. Sustainability Implications – The MTFS provides a framework for ensuring a 
sustainable financial position over the medium term.  

 

16. Human Rights Implications – No direct human rights implications. 
 

17. Area and Ward Implications – All areas of the Borough are covered by the principles 
set out in this strategy 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2017 - 2022 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 

Page 17



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 1 

 

 

Contents 

 

1. Executive Summary ........................................................................................................ 2 

2. Introduction ..................................................................................................................... 5 

3. National Financial Context .............................................................................................. 7 

4. Local Financial Context ................................................................................................... 9 

5. Local Policy Context ...................................................................................................... 11 

6. The Council’s Current Financial Position and Outlook .................................................. 13 

7. Looking Ahead: Review of Cost Pressures ................................................................... 18 

8. Looking Ahead : Review of Funding & Income .............................................................. 20 

9. Capital & Prudential Borrowing ..................................................................................... 24 

10. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) ................................................................................. 29 

11. Reserves ....................................................................................................................... 30 

12. Indicative Budget Forecasts 2017/18 to 2021/2022 ...................................................... 35 

13. Options to Close our Financial Gap............................................................................... 36 

14. Efficiency Plans ............................................................................................................. 37 

15. Consultation .................................................................................................................. 40 

16. Risk Assessment ........................................................................................................... 41 

17. Conclusion .................................................................................................................... 44 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 18



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 2 

 

 

1. Executive Summary 
 

1.1 This is the annual review of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). It is based 
on a financial forecast over a rolling five-year timeframe from 2017/18 to 2021/22 which will 
help ensure resources are aligned to the outcomes in the Council Plan 2015-2020. The MTFS 
sets the financial context for the Council’s resource allocation process and budget setting. 

 

1.2 The Council, along with other local authorities, has faced unprecedented reductions in 
Government funding since the Comprehensive Spending Review 2010. In addition, service 
pressures and increasing demand for services, particularly from the most vulnerable, has 
meant the Council has had to make significant budget savings in response to the 
Government’s austerity measures.  Like other Councils in the region, Gateshead Council has 
seen its funding disproportionately impacted and reduced by Government Policy when 
compared with the national context. The UK’s recent vote to leave the European Union (EU) is 
likely to herald only more instability in the short to medium term and the consequences will 
need to be carefully considered over the MTFS period. 
 

1.3 At a local level, there are changes in Gateshead’s demography with an increasing population 
and a growing number of our most vulnerable residents requiring complex health and social 
care support. The impact of the recession has also seen reduced economic growth in 
Gateshead. Although an improved ranking in the Index of Multiple Deprivation 2015, there are 
still areas of high deprivation with issues of health inequalities and child poverty. We recognise 
the importance of increasing Gateshead’s prosperity; encouraging housing and business 
growth, as well as revitalising our economy and job opportunities, so that ultimately people’s 
standards of living will improve. 
 

1.4 The likely continuing requirement and scale of budget savings, over and above the £130m 
already taken from budgets since 2010, presents an increasing challenge for the Council.  The 
Government’s approach to “continue the work of bringing the public finances under control and 
reducing the deficit, so Britain lives within its means” will result in further significant funding 
reductions for local government. 
 

1.5 By the end of 2017/18 the Council’s grant funding will have reduced by approximately 46% 
from 2010. This equates to over a £380 per head reduction and over an £800 per dwelling 
reduction in Government funding over the period. Central Government commitments to 
eliminating the budget deficit and to reducing the overall levels of public debt would indicate 
significant reductions in Government grant funding are likely to continue over the medium 
term. In order to strengthen our financial position the Council will have to consider other ways 
to generate income and be self-sufficient including changes in local taxation, fees and charges 
and trading activities as well as prioritising and supporting economic growth within the 
borough.  
 

1.6 Reviewing the MTFS remains essential to ensuring the Council’s medium term financial 
sustainability.  The Council has responded to the financial challenges in a systematic and 
planned way through an approach based around four inter-related areas: economic growth, 
managing demand, collective responsibility and efficiencies and has a strong track record of 
identifying and delivering savings and efficiencies whilst protecting priority services as much as 
possible.  The Council will have to make very difficult choices in the years ahead about which 
services to prioritise. In order to avoid cuts to services, the authority continues to explore 
alternative options of service delivery to ensure that services remain fit for purpose in the 
context of smaller budgets. This may mean revisiting the expectations of residents in order to 
protect services for the most vulnerable. It is also an opportunity to work with partners and 
neighbouring authorities to maintain and improve outcomes whilst reducing public spending. 

Page 19



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 3 

 

 

1.7 Within the 2016/17 settlement the Government provided some details of indicative funding up 
to 2019/20 which gives a high level indication of revenue support grant funding. However 
uncertainty still exists in respect of likely government funding levels in relation to other grants 
over the period as well as instability that arises from the volatility of business rates funding and 
the implications of the move towards a new funding regime of 100% rate retention.  Although 
there exists a great deal of uncertainty, overall it is now estimated that the Council will need to 
close a funding gap of £92.3m over the five financial years 2017/18 to 2021/22. This funding 
gap can be summarised as follows:  

 

1.8 The funding gap over the medium term can be further analysed to identify separately demand 
pressures on expenditure and the impact of funding reductions on income. This can be 
presented graphically as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 4 

 

 

1.9 Government legislation has and will continue to directly impact local government.  The welfare 
reform agenda is likely to continue to place additional demands on local authority services as 
well as significantly impacting on local authority finances with a further £12bn cuts to the 
welfare budget included in the Summer Budget 2015.  The Social Care Act will also put 
additional strain on local authority services and while provision has been made to further 
improve the integration of social care and health services through the Better Care Fund it is 
unclear whether resources allocated to local government will be sufficient to cover additional 
burdens. Government policy in respect of schools and housing will also impact significantly on 
Council service provision and financial planning. 
 

1.10 The Council will ensure that it maintains support to priority services, and it will seek to prioritise 
those services that are most needed. It will continue to review the services it delivers, and the 
way that it delivers them, through the Change Programme. This will ensure that reducing 
resources are used to maximum effect, and allow the Council to continue to deliver new and 
better ways of working and invest to improve the efficiency of services provided. It is evident 
however the continuing reductions in funding and increases in demand will have an inevitable 
impact on both the nature and scope of services that the Council is able to deliver. The Council 
will aim to manage the process of change to its services effectively. 
 

1.11 The Council’s approach to financial planning over the medium term will include a focus on 
investment in growth and income generation. The Council recognises that economic growth 
benefits the residents of Gateshead and the businesses within Gateshead.  It also strengthens 
the position of the Council by developing financial resilience through less exposure to 
reductions in government funding.  The Council will retain its vision for the future of the 
Borough through promoting development and economic growth and this will assist in 
maintaining the medium term financial sustainability of the Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 21



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 5 

 

 

2. Introduction  

The Purpose of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
 

2.1 The MTFS is a key part of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework which aims to ensure 
that all financial resources are directed towards delivery of the Council Plan and Vision 2030. 
The Strategy describes the financial direction of the Council for planning purposes and outlines 
the financial pressures over a five-year period but is reviewed annually to reflect the dynamic 
nature of local government funding.  
 

2.2 The review of the MTFS builds on the existing strategy and updates assumptions to reflect 
known funding announced as part of the local government financial settlement for 2016/17 and 
estimated multi-year settlement figures beyond this. Financial planning assumptions will need 
to be kept under constant review given the increased level of uncertainty which will continue 
until more detail is released on funding later in the year and as implications from the move to 
100% rates retention are clarified. 
 

2.3 The MTFS establishes the likely level of resources available to the Council over the medium 
term and also estimates the financial consequences of the demand for Council services. It 
provides the financial context within which the Council budget will be set.   

 

The Benefits of the MTFS 
 

2.4 The MTFS assists in: 
 

 Delivering the priorities of the Council Plan and delivering Vision 2030; 
 

 Improving financial planning and the strategic financial management of the Council’s 
revenue and capital resources; 
 

 Maximising the use of resources available to the Council, both internal and external; 
 

 Ensuring that the Council provides value for money and delivers budget savings; 
 

 Aligning financial resources to the Council’s spending priorities and priority outcomes; 
 

 Reviewing the Council’s reserves policy to ensure there is protection against unforeseen 
events; 
 

 Responding to external pressures; 
 

 Developing a sustainable budget over the medium term; 
 

 Highlighting financial risks and mitigating controls. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 6 

 

 

The Principles of the MTFS  
 

2.5 The principles underlying the MTFS 2017/18 to 2021/22 are as follows: 
 

1) The overall financial strategy will be to ensure that the Council’s resources are directed to 
achieving Vision 2030 and the outcomes set out in the Council Plan. The Council’s MTFS 
will be reviewed on at least an annual basis. 
 

2) Overall Council spending should be contained within original estimates.  If, following 
monthly revenue monitoring, service budgets are projected to exceed original estimates, 
plans should be prepared setting out the actions required to ensure spending at the end of 
the year does not exceed original estimates. 
 

3) The Council will maintain its general reserve at a minimum of 3% of the net revenue budget 
to cover any major unforeseen expenditure. The Council will aim to balance its revenue 
budget over the period of the MTFS without reliance on the use of the general reserve.   
 

4) The Council will maintain earmarked reserves for specific purposes which are consistent 
with achieving its key priorities. The use and level of earmarked reserves will be reviewed at 
least annually. 
 

5) The Council will continue to improve its approach to efficiency, commissioning and 
procurement to ensure value for money and minimise the impact of budget savings on 
priority services as well as effectively managing the programme of change.  
 

6) Opportunities for working in collaboration and partnership and different ways of working will 
be identified and developed where this will support the delivery of the Council’s outcomes 
and improve service efficiency and delivery.  This will include the use of well-being powers, 
development of trading opportunities and different business models and the sourcing and 
securing of external funding.   
 

7) The Council will consider the use of prudential borrowing to support capital investment to 
deliver Vision 2030 and will ensure that the full costs of borrowing are taken into account 
when investment decisions are taken. 
 

8) The Council will aim to promote and stimulate strong and sustainable economic growth 
leading to wellbeing and prosperity for residents and communities and this will be supported 
by a planned approach to strategic investment managed through the Council’s capital 
programme. 
 

9) The Council recognises the impact of increases in Council tax levels and fees and charges 
in an area of relatively low income and low wealth and will therefore balance the need for 
increases against the delivery of Vision 2030 and demand for services.  
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 23



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 7 

 

 

3. National Financial Context 
 

3.1 The financial crisis of 2008 and 2009 revealed an unstable and unbalanced model of economic 
growth in the UK. Since 2010 the Government has introduced a number of reforms impacting 
on local government services and financing. 
 

3.2 Measures set out at Spending Review 2015 meant savings of £21.5 billion, of which £9.5 
billion was reinvested in the Government’s priorities. The Budget 2016 set out that the 
Government is adjusting those plans with intent to find a further £3.5 billion of savings from 
public spending in 2019/20 with no breakdown for individual departments. 

 

3.3 Summer Budget 2015 and Autumn Statement 2015 also announced reforms to the welfare 
system that are to be enacted through the Welfare Reform and Work Bill. The Government’s 
intention is for system changes to be completed by the end of the Parliament. The proposed 
legislation potentially presents local government with a significant number of new burdens and 
pressures, which could result from both direct operational and indirect consequences. 
 

3.4 During 2015/16 the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) kept the Base Rate at 0.50% for the 
seventh successive year. It is not expected that the base rate will increase from 0.50% until 
Quarter 1 of 2017 at the earliest and subsequent rate rises are expected to be slow and 
gradual.  

 

3.5 The Retail Price Index (RPI) in the year to March 2016 rose by 1.6%, up from 1.3% in 
February 2016 towards the MPC’s 2% target.  The Consumer Price Index (CPI) rose by 0.5% 
in the year to March 2016 compared with a 0.3% rise in the year to February. The CPI 12 
month rate (the amount prices change over a year) between March 2015 and March 2016 
stood at 0.5%. The rate has increased gradually since October 2015 although it is still 
relatively low in the historical context. In March 2016 the OBR revised down its forecast for UK 
growth in 2016 to 2.0% from the 2.4% outlined in the autumn statement with similar reductions 
in subsequent years. This is based on newly reduced assumptions of productivity growth, 
which is set to stay low throughout the developed world.   
 

3.6 The OBR forecasts for this year and subsequent years which were predicted on Britain 
remaining in the EU, are as follows. 
 

Autumn Statement 2015    March Budget 2016  
2.4% in 2015                                 2.2% in 2015  
2.4% in 2016                                2.0% in 2016  
2.5% in 2017                               2.2% in 2017  
2.4% in 2018                               2.1% in 2018  
2.3% in 2019                                2.1% in 2019  
2.3% in 2020                                2.1% in 2020 

3.7 In respect of Government borrowing the national debt is lower than anticipated in cash terms 
but is above target on a debt to GDP ratio basis. This is a consequence of the nominal size of 
the economy being lower than expected. Despite increasing its expected borrowing over the 
next three financial years, the Government has restated its intention to run a budget surplus in 
2019/20 and has made a minor negative adjustment to its target for this year. The OBR 
forecasts that the public finances will deliver a surplus of £10.4 billion in 2019/20 and £11.0 
billion in 2020/21. Public sector net debt is forecast to fall to 74.7% of GDP in 2020/21. 
 

Page 24



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 8 

 

 

3.8 The Autumn Statement and Spending Review 2015 was announced on 25 November 2015 
and the provisional local government finance settlement on 17 December 2015. The Final 
Local Government Funding Settlement was laid before Parliament on 8 February 2016. 
 

3.9 The global economic outlook has deteriorated since the Spending Review and Autumn 
Statement 2015. Both the International Monetary Fund (IMF) and the Organisation for 
Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) have revised down their global forecasts for 
GDP in 2016. 

 

3.10 However it is important to note that in light of recent announcements of the UK’s intention to 
leave the EU, all these assumptions will be revisited over the next month or so and the 
financial impacts to the Council’s MTFS will be reconsidered. 
 

3.11 The provisional local government finance settlement for 2016/17 was the first local government 
finance settlement (LGFS) of the current parliament and Spending Review (SR) period. It is 
also the first LGFS at the start of a parliament since Business Rate Retention (BRR) was 
introduced. The Government used this opportunity to present indicative funding levels 
throughout the period, in association with what they call an “offer” of four-year settlements, 
including 2016/17 up to 2019/20. The previous use of Spending Power (SP) was also revised 
to be known as Core Spending Power (CSP). The government announcement includes 
predications of certain core funding such as business rates, RSG and council tax but other 
specific grants such as public health are excluded. 

 

3.12 The move to four year funding certainty is welcomed but the lack of clarity concerning the 
approach and other funding areas limits the benefit in respect of financial planning.  This 
coupled with the Government’s policy agenda continue to result in an overall context of funding 
uncertainty.  The Government has stated intent to improve the fairness of the Local Authority 
Revenue Grant Settlement to 2019/20.  The data analysis is mixed for 2016/17 against a 
backdrop of unfair funding since 2010. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25

http://links.govdelivery.com/track?type=click&enid=ZWFzPTEmbXNpZD0mYXVpZD0mbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTYwMjAyLjU0NjE4OTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE2MDIwMi41NDYxODk4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE2ODA0MTczJmVtYWlsaWQ9cmFjaGVsbWFzb25AZ2F0ZXNoZWFkLmdvdi51ayZ1c2VyaWQ9cmFjaGVsbWFzb25AZ2F0ZXNoZWFkLmdvdi51ayZ0YXJnZXRpZD0mZmw9Jm12aWQ9JmV4dHJhPSYmJg==&&&105&&&https://www.gov.uk/government/topical-events/autumn-statement-and-spending-review-2015
http://links.govdelivery.com/track?type=click&enid=ZWFzPTEmbXNpZD0mYXVpZD0mbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTYwMjAyLjU0NjE4OTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE2MDIwMi41NDYxODk4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE2ODA0MTczJmVtYWlsaWQ9cmFjaGVsbWFzb25AZ2F0ZXNoZWFkLmdvdi51ayZ1c2VyaWQ9cmFjaGVsbWFzb25AZ2F0ZXNoZWFkLmdvdi51ayZ0YXJnZXRpZD0mZmw9Jm12aWQ9JmV4dHJhPSYmJg==&&&106&&&https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/provisional-local-government-finance-settlement-2016-to-2017-and-an-offer-to-councils-for-future-years
http://links.govdelivery.com/track?type=click&enid=ZWFzPTEmbXNpZD0mYXVpZD0mbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTYwMjAyLjU0NjE4OTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE2MDIwMi41NDYxODk4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE2ODA0MTczJmVtYWlsaWQ9cmFjaGVsbWFzb25AZ2F0ZXNoZWFkLmdvdi51ayZ1c2VyaWQ9cmFjaGVsbWFzb25AZ2F0ZXNoZWFkLmdvdi51ayZ0YXJnZXRpZD0mZmw9Jm12aWQ9JmV4dHJhPSYmJg==&&&108&&&https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/provisional-local-government-finance-settlement-2016-to-2017-and-an-offer-to-councils-for-future-years


 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 9 

 

 

4. Local Financial Context 
 

4.1 Over the last 5 years, the most deprived areas of the country including the North East have 
suffered disproportionately high cuts in revenue grants and in revenue spending power.  The 
North East is the most deprived and poorest region in England and as a result has suffered the 
highest proportionate cut in its spending power, resulting in deeper cuts in services having to 
be made. The cumulative pressure of higher cuts on the poorest areas of the country has been 
highlighted by independent bodies including the National Audit Office. The above average 
additional cut in spending power in the North East is estimated at over £166 million a year in 
2015/16. This disproportionate burden of cuts has raised significant concerns in the region 
about the ‘fair funding’ of statutory revenue services and the impact that the higher cuts in 
services is having on the people in the region. 
 

4.2 The Revenue Support Grant Settlement over the next two years is fairer than it would 
otherwise have been due to a number of changes to the way cuts in revenue support grant 
have been made.  Despite these significant improvements, the North East continues to face 
higher cuts in core spending power, due mainly to its low Council tax base. 

 

4.3 As Adults and Children’s services now account for over half of Councils’ budgets, they are 
expected to make significant contributions to local authority savings targets. This coincides 
with a rise in demand and the impact of welfare reform. Whilst this provides us with a unique 
challenge, particularly around capacity, it also provides a unique opportunity to do something 
different. That said, there is a particular context in which we are operating, as North East 
Councils have been hit the hardest by the cuts over the last 5 years, and some of our 
pressures (e.g. a 30% rise in Looked After Children in the region, 15.2% in Gateshead) add a 
particular urgency to ensuring that there is sufficient resource in the system to continue to 
deliver statutory services and discretionary preventative measures which can help reduce cost 
pressures across the public sector.   

 

4.4 Some facts specific to the region is given below for information and context; 
 

 Since 2010, unemployment in the North of England has fallen by a third. The 
employment rate in Newcastle/Gateshead was 68.5% in September 2015. The rate has 
been increasing over the last two years, narrowing the gap to England (73.6%)1 

 

 The number of people out of work and claiming Jobseekers Allowance or Universal 
Credit has fluctuated around 8,000 since the summer of 2015, following several years of 
decrease. The current claimant rate is 2.6% compared to the England average of 1.8% 

 

 The number of people claiming out of work benefits is reducing. In the last year, the 
number of claimants has reduced by 2,930, and over the last five years it has reduced 
by 10,650. The rate in Newcastle/Gateshead is now 12.0% compared with 8.9% across 
England. 

 

 Median gross weekly pay of full time workers in both Newcastle and Gateshead 
remains lower than the England average; however since 2010 it grew faster in all 
regions of the North than they did in London. 

 

 The Department for Communities and Local Government released the new Indices of 
Deprivation 2015 on 30 September 2015.  Gateshead is ranked 73rd out of 326 local 
authorities where 1 is the most deprived (rank of average score – overall IMD). 

                                                      
1
 http://www.gateshead.gov.uk See Economic Scorecard and Population Estimates 

Page 26

http://www.gateshead.gov.uk/


 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 10 

 

 

 

 In total 25% (49,790 people) of the population of Gateshead live in the 20% most 
deprived areas in England. There are eight wards containing areas within the 10% most 
deprived in England. At 64%, Felling ward is estimated to have the highest proportion of 
its population living in the 10% most deprived areas in England. Low Fell ward is 
estimated to have the highest proportion of its population in the 50% least deprived 
areas in England.  

 

 The latest estimated resident population of Gateshead is 200,500. This is calculated by 
the Office for National Statistics for mid-2014.  Gateshead’s population is projected to 
increase by 11,300 (5.6%) between 2012 and 2037 to 211,500. 

 

 It is projected that by 2037 there will be an additional 16,400 aged 65 or over, an 
increase of 45%. Despite the growth of the working age population, the older age 
groups are growing at a faster rate and so working age people are projected to 
represent a smaller proportion of the total population i.e. 61% instead of 62%. This is 
illustrated in the table below; 

 

 
 

 It is estimated that there are currently 90,582 households in Gateshead and that in just 
over 20 years there will be an additional 9,428 households bringing the total to 100,010 
by 2037. 

 

 The latest projections suggesting that working age people will represent a smaller 
proportion of the total population in future could present a challenge to the future 
economic sustainability of Gateshead. However, it is important to note that ONS’ 
projections are based on the continuation of past trends. Through Council intervention 
the implementation of various initiatives aimed at attracting jobs and encouraging 
economic growth, it is possible that population growth, particularly among working age 
residents, can be higher than indicated by these latest projections - to a level that is 
more capable of delivering a sustainable future for Gateshead. 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 27



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 11 

 

 

5. Local Policy Context 
 

5.1 The hierarchy of corporate plans and strategies is shown below: 

 

Plans 

5.2 Vision 2030 was developed and agreed by the Gateshead Strategic Partnership (GSP) and is 
the overarching strategy setting out the long term vision and priorities for the future of 
Gateshead. Vision 2030 aims to improve the wellbeing and equality of opportunity for 
Gateshead residents so that all residents and businesses in Gateshead can fulfil their 
potential.  
 

5.3 The Council Plan sets out the collective five year ambitions for the Council and how Vision 
2030 will be achieved.  It sets out clear policy directions which will help the Council make 
choices about where limited resources should be focused and what changing roles and 
responsibilities will mean for employees, buildings, and relationships with partners.  The plan 
has been refreshed to cover the period 2015 to 2020 and sets the focus for the strategy and 
overall approach to individual Business Plans for each of the Council’s services as: 
 

 Maximising growth - we need to grow, generating income and prosperity, both 
indirectly by creating conditions for economic growth and high value jobs, and directly 
by generating income for the Council through more Council tax, more business rates, 
external funding and trading. We can then redirect resource to support those most in 
need. 
 

 Reducing costs - both by managing demand in areas where there is significant cost 
pressure but also by increasing efficiency for example through technology and changes 
to the way the Council works, such as consolidation of buildings and reducing costly 
processes. 

 

 Increasing collective responsibility – encouraging and supporting local people, 
partner organisations, businesses and local communities to play a more active role in 
achieving the outcomes for Gateshead.  

 

Vision 2030 

Council Plan & MTFS 

Performance & Risk 
Management Frameworks 

and Service Business Plans 

Page 28



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 12 

 

 

5.4 This will be achieved by focusing on the following key shared outcomes: 
 

Prosperous Gateshead – a thriving economy for all 

 More and better paid jobs for local people 

 Fewer people with low level skills and more people with higher level skills through: 

 improved educational attainment 

 increased learning and development 

 More private, public and social investment 

 An increase in the working age population  
 

Live Love Gateshead – a sense of pride and ownership by all 

 A confident and more aspirational population acting as Gateshead’s strongest 
advocates 

 Gateshead people who care about their local area and share responsibility for making 
and keeping our environment the best it can be 

 A community who take pride in Gateshead the place and enjoy and engage in world 
class culture events and heritage that contributes to a sense of belonging and 
wellbeing. 
 

Live Well Gateshead - a healthy, inclusive and nurturing place for all  

 The destination of choice for families with a range of excellent and affordable housing 
choices 

 A place where children have the best start in life 

 A place where older people are independent and are able to make a valuable 
contribution to the community 

 A place where people choose to lead healthy lifestyles, with more and more people 
across Gateshead living longer and without life-limiting illnesses 

 A place where those who need help have access to appropriate joined up services that 
make a difference to the quality of their life 

 A tolerant place where people feel safe. 
 

5.5 The MTFS is central to identifying the Council’s capacity to deliver its outcomes and across the 

same time horizon as the Council Plan it reflects: 

 The delivery of Vision 2030. 

 The Council’s current financial position and outlook. 

 The Council’s overall financial strategy, including use of reserves. 

 Internal and external pressures which may influence the Council’s financial position. 
 

5.6 In April 2016, Cabinet approved a redesigned performance management framework which, 
along with the change programme, will continue to help deliver the Council’s priorities within 
Vision 2030 and the Council Plan. 
 

5.7 A number of key corporate strategies also feed into the MTFS, including the Workforce 
Strategy, Digital Strategy, Corporate Asset Strategy and Management Plan.  All of these 
strategies are linked to the MTFS through the performance management framework Business 
Plans. 
 

5.8 As well as setting out the Council’s role, the corporate strategies described above emphasise 
the work with partners, including the voluntary sector, in the delivery of Vision 2030.  In some 
cases this is achieved through pooling or aligning resources where this can be demonstrated 
to add value. 

Page 29



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 13 

 

 

6. The Council’s Current Financial Position and Outlook 
 

2015/16 Revenue Outturn Position 

6.1  The agreed net revenue budget for 2015/16 was £207.387m. The final revenue outturn, for 
2015/16 was reported to Cabinet on 14 June 2016 stating an overall under spend of £0.771m 
against a revised net budget (following cuts to Public Health Grant) of £206.345m. Whilst the 
outturn position is positive, it should be noted that a number of one-off areas of under spend 
and additional income have contributed to this position. 
 

6.2 The Council’s current reserves, as a result of the 2015/16 outturn, are covered in Section 11, 
along with a review of the Council’s policy on the use of reserves. 
 

Budget 2016/17 

6.3 Council agreed the revenue budget for 2016/17 at its meeting in February 2016. This was set 
at £198.883m (excluding schools) and included £18.796m savings. 
 

6.4 The budget includes a number of risk areas which, if not closely monitored and controlled 
throughout the year, could add further pressure to the funding gap in future years. These 
include the delivery of agreed savings and achievement of income targets, particularly in 
relation to localisation of business rates and council tax.   
 

6.5 £4.4m of reserves were earmarked to support delivery of savings proposals within 2016/17. It 
is assumed within future sections that these savings are fully achieved before budget 2017/18 
otherwise the financial gap would increase. These will be closely monitored throughout the 
year. 
 

Outlook 

6.6  Medium term financial planning remains difficult and the plan has been prepared against the 
continuing funding cuts for local government coupled with increased demand for social care 
and welfare reform. In addition, there is great uncertainty in relation to the level of funding 
beyond 2020 and greater risks in relation to the localisation of business rates and the local 
council tax scheme. The impact of the Government’s devolution agenda as well as the future 
of the UK’s inclusion in the European Union will mean that these forecasts will need to be 
closely monitored and potentially refreshed as consequences become clear.  

 

6.7  The 2016 budget was delivered on 16 March 2016 and had a number of items that could affect 
the Council’s position particularly around business rates;  

 

 A further £3.5 billion efficiency saving in 2019-20 with no phasing and no clear 
allocation to government departments; 
 

 The government will increase the National Minimum Wage rates from October 2016; 
 

 Business Rate annual indexation will change from the Retail Prices Index (RPI) to the 
main measure of inflation, currently the Consumer Price Index (CPI), from 1 April 2020; 
(CPI runs at a lower rate than RPI and will result in lower rate increases to authorities) 
 

 Small Business Rate Relief (SBRR): doubling – The government will permanently 
double SBRR in England from 1 April 2017. With the cost subsidised by treasury;  
 

Page 30



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 14 

 

 

 Small Business Rate Relief: thresholds – The Government will raise the threshold in 
England to rateable values of up to £12,000 tapering to £15,000 from 1 April 2017;  
 

 Standard multiplier – The Government will raise the threshold at which business rates 
bills in England are calculated using the standard multiplier to properties with rateable 
values of £51,000 and above from 1 April 2017; 
 

 Modernisation – The Government will work with local authorities in England to 
standardise business rates bills by 1 April 2017, ensure that all ratepayers can receive 
bills and make payments online by 1 April 2017 and ensure that all local authority billing 
and collection systems link with HMRC digital tax accounts by 2022; 
 

 Valuation reform – The government will aim to introduce more frequent (at least 3 
yearly) revaluations of properties in England for business rates purposes; 
 

 All schools were expected to become academies by 2020, or to have an academy order 

in place to convert by 2022.(Government have subsequently relaxed this requirement) 

6.8 Subsequently in April ministers confirmed to the local government select committee that 
budget announcements on cuts would not affect the multi-year settlements but that the funding 
allocations for 2019/20 may be subject to implementation of 100% rate retention. 
 

6.9 The provisional Local Government Finance Settlement for 2016/17 was announced on 17 
December 2015 and was reported to Cabinet on 19 January 2016.  In terms of the grant 
settlement, by the end of 2017/18 the Council’s grant funding (adjusted for new burdens) has 
reduced dramatically by around 46% since 2010/11, or £380 per head. The overall adjusted 
revenue spending power has reduced by over 30% since 2010. 

  

6.10 The actual reduction in Revenue Support Grant from 2015/16 to 2016/17 was £10.51m (22%) 
From 2013 when the funding system changed to localisation of business rates RSG alone has 
reduced from £76.7m to £37.2m in 2016 (51%). Furthermore by 2020 the Council will no 
longer receive this grant with the move to a new funding system of 100% rates retention. The 
implication being that the Council will become less reliant on central sources of funding 
towards the end of the decade. 
 

6.11 The Council has repeatedly raised concerns about fairness in the distribution of funds in the 
Settlement, as the region has been faced with amongst the highest cuts in the country at a 
time of very significant cost pressures and conversely, some of the most affluent parts of the 
country have received increases in their spending power in previous years.  
 

6.12 There is growing concern and evidence of the negative impacts of the current economic 
climate on mental health and wellbeing, particularly in areas of deprivation like Gateshead. It is 
already a major priority in the Gateshead Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy and the Annual Public Health report for Gateshead.  

 

6.13 Even the projected Government figures highlight significant challenges ahead for Councils who 
will have to make savings, despite receiving a proposed flat-cash settlement over the next four 
years.  Additional cost pressures include those arising from general inflation, cost pressures in 
the care sector, increases in the number of adults and children needing support and rising 
levels of need, increases in demand for everyday services as the population grows, pressure 
on homelessness budgets and increases in core costs such as national insurance, the 
National Living Wage and pension contributions. 

 

Page 31



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 15 

 

 

6.14 The change in local government funding to 100% rate retention brings additional risks that 
were formally managed nationally and will now be transferred to local government, namely; 

 

 Risks in wider economic regeneration and downturns in the local economy in areas 
that suffer weaker national average economic performance; 

 

 Increased risks in greater numbers of benefits claimants under the local council tax 
reduction scheme that transferred to local authorities in 2013/14; 

 

 The Government have confirmed that additional responsibilities will be transferred to 
local government in the move towards 100% retention. Indications at this stage are 
that Public Health funding and attendance allowance payments (currently administered 
by Department for Work and Pensions) will transfer. This places any risks of 
increasing demand in these areas and any others transferred onto the Council; 

 

 Risks of welfare reforms and the impact on collection rates of both council tax and 
business rates. 

 

6.15 The Council is operating in a challenging national policy context which has been compounded 
by Government funding reductions and unfunded cost pressures. The Government’s 
methodology for funding local authorities is inextricably linked to the performance of the local 
economy in the local authority areas via New Homes Bonus Funding arrangements, Business 
Rate Retention and Local Council Tax Reduction Schemes.  

 

6.16 From 2010 onwards, local authorities have had to adapt to: 
 

 The impact of central government funding reductions, a real terms reduction in central 
government funding of 37% between 2010/11 and 2015/16 (National Audit Office, 2014) 

 

 The local impacts of the economic crisis, in terms of increased pressures on some 
services (e.g. social services and benefits payments)  

 

 The impact of changes to business rate retention from 2013/14 and related issues of 
rate volatility such as impacts of Appeal rulings 

 

 The new responsibility of locally funding council tax benefit payments, previously paid by 
central government. 

 

 Since 2013 responsibility for commissioning many public health services moved from the 
NHS to local authorities and a new executive agency of the Department of Health, Public 
Health England and more recently responsibilities for commissioning for public health 
services for 0-5 year olds.new  
 

6.17 The scale of reductions in central funding has required local authorities to focus more on local 
self-sufficiency through other forms of income generation such as: 
 

 Council tax rate increases, subject to referendum limits; 
 

 Increases in the rates of fees and charges; 
 

 Increases in the scope of fees and charges (i.e. charging for services not previously 
charged for); 
 

 Economic development measures to increase the funding through tax collected (council 
tax and business rates); 

 

 Increasing trading activities to generate surplus for reinvestment in other vital services. 

Page 32



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 16 

 

 

6.18 Vision 2030 sets out the following goals under the Prosperous Gateshead theme which will 
support a thriving economy for all over the next five years; 

 

• More and better paid jobs and more people in work 
• Fewer people with low level skills and more with higher level skills 
• More private, public and social investment 
• An increase in the working age population 
 

6.19 A significant amount of activity is already being delivered by the Council and its partners, to 
promote sustainability and growth across the borough and evidence of this is readily visible 
through the regeneration of the town centres.   

 

6.20 The Gateshead Economic Growth Acceleration Plan 2013-18 provides a broad framework to 
direct the investment of the Council’s resources, including the Capital Programme and creation 
of an Economic Growth Reserve, to ensure economic growth and job creation opportunities 
are maximised.   

 

6.21 In the future the urban core will be the focal point for economic growth and transformation, 
becoming the main contributor to Gateshead’s economic prosperity. As well as being the 
cultural, retail, tourism and leisure hub, it will be a regionally significant office location for 
professional, financial and business services; particularly within the Accelerated Development 
Zone. The growing creative and ICT/media industries are already well represented and 
demonstrate strong growth potential. Investment will also be encouraged within the key 
employment areas of Team Valley and Follingsby, the primary centres for manufacturing 
industries and distribution services.  
 

6.22 In addition the Council’s Rural Economic Strategy (2015-2020) supports economic growth in 
the borough’s rural communities, whilst contributing to growth across Gateshead and the 
region. Working with a range of public, private and voluntary sector partners it supports 
business development in sectors such as tourism and food and drink, whilst seeking to 
maximise the use of land and property assets for business purposes, thereby increasing 
business rates income to the Council.  Helping residents develop the skills to access these 
jobs is a key aspect of the work as is helping to co-ordinate the economic objectives arising 
from for example the development of new housing, the growth in rural services and 
improvements to the natural environment.   

 

6.23 The reduction in public funding for infrastructure has required consideration of new 
approaches to regeneration. As part of the Newcastle City Deal in July 2012, an Accelerated 
Development Zone (ADZ), within Gateshead was agreed. The deal allows for 100% of the 
business rate income at Gateshead Quays and Baltic Business Quarter to be retained locally, 
rather than held by the Treasury, to support the delivery of vital economic infrastructure that 
will boost economic growth in the area.  On 2 June 2015 Cabinet approved the appointment of 
a development partner for Gateshead Quays which will assist with regeneration plans and 
business rates growth. 
 

6.24 The 2014 to 2020 European Structural and Investment Fund (ESIF) programme also presents 
an opportunity to lever funds in to the borough to deliver our ambitions for smart, sustainable 
and inclusive growth.  

 

6.25 The Council’s strategic ambitions for economic growth will be supported by the Local Plan for 
Gateshead which includes the Planning for the Future Core Strategy and Urban Core Plan for 
Gateshead and Newcastle upon Tyne.  This framework will help to create and sustain thriving 
communities and a more prosperous economy through developments, including the provision 
of new homes, jobs growth and a portfolio of employment land. 

Page 33



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 17 

 

 

 

Change Programme  
 

6.26 In response to cuts in public funding Cabinet agreed to a major programme of change at its 
meeting on 9th February 2016 to guide budget decisions and the shape of the Council in the 
future.  Given the unprecedented scale and pace of change required a co-ordinated 
programme was determined to provide the best opportunity to review activities at the right time 
and minimise the effect on what residents may need and expect. This approach will ensure 
that opportunities are explored to increase income as well as closing or reducing current 
provision. The Council’s approach within the programme is aligned with the Council Plan and 
is thus focused on four inter-related areas: economic growth, managing demand, collective 
responsibility and efficiency by: 
 

 Doing all we can to support economic growth and revenue generation – given 
reductions in Central Government funding, success in this area will enable the Council 
to redirect resource to activities which protect the most vulnerable. 
 

 Focusing on managing demand (particularly in social care) with a targeted approach, 
emphasising early intervention and prevention. 

 

 Increasing collective responsibility – encouraging and supporting local people, partner 
organisations, businesses and local communities to play a more active role in achieving 
the outcomes for Gateshead. 

 

 Continuing to drive efficiencies through changes to the way the Council works, for 
example, through exploiting new technology, consolidation of buildings and services, 
reducing complex processes and increased trading. 

 

6.27 The change programme has four workstreams as follows: 
 

 People- Adult Social Care and Children’s Services – reviewing proposals for change 

within each of the services and consider options for earlier intervention and different 

ways of working with partners and other agencies.  
 

 Place – increasing community and individual resilience such as enabling communities 

to do more themselves by actively improving the environment and promoting positive 

behaviours. Exploring opportunities and positive actions to achieve economic growth of 

the borough, maximising assets and considering the Council’s approach to Housing and 

leisure strategy. 
 

 Trading –finding opportunities to increase our income from trading. 

 Ways of Working – considering how we can maximise the use of buildings and 
technology to help everyone work smarter and more efficiently, and helping the Council 
to get the most out of its most valuable resource, its employees. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 18 

 

 

7. Looking Ahead: Review of Cost Pressures 
 

7.1 Future budget forecasts include the following cost pressures: 
 

Base Adjustments  

 There are no anticipated base adjustments required over the period. These are used at 
base budget setting where there are transfers of responsibilities. 
 

Inflation  

 General inflation pressures for items such as utilities, rates, fuel, insurance etc. are 
based on 0.9% average RPI/CPI projections have been included per annum over the 
period. This will be updated to reflect the prevailing rate of inflation during the budget 
process but will be kept to a minimum. Contractual inflation for care related costs are 
based on known planning assumptions in each specific area. 

 

Corporate Pressures 

 Pensions -The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) was last subject to its 
triennial review in 2014/15 the next revaluation will be in 2017/18 and given 
performance on the fund in recent years is likely to add an additional cost pressure 
assuming the fund deficit increases as fewer employees are contributing. Stepped 
deficiency payments have been included in the 2016/17 budget and estimated funding 
gap for the MTFS period. The next review will be in 2020 within the MTFS period. 

 

 Pay (including implementation of National Living Wage) – The current LGS pay award 
of 1% will run through to 31 March 2018.  Beyond that assumptions are based on 
awards being limited to 1% for the remaining period of the MTFS. (The Summer Budget 
2015 announced the context of limiting of pay awards to 1% for the period 2016/17 to 
2019/20). It is important to note that the MTFS is not an expression of Council Policy on 
pay awards, but a means of ensuring an appropriate provision is made as part of the 
overall financial planning of the Council.  The cost of implementing the National Living 
wage becomes more significant towards the later years where greater stepped changes 
are required to meet the Governments prescribed wage per hour. 
The new mandatory National Living Wage (NLW) will come into effect from 1 April 2016, 

set at £7.20 an hour for workers aged 25 and above. The government has asked the 

Low Pay Commission (LPC) to set out how the new NLW will reach 60% of median 

earnings by 2020. Based on the OBR’s March 2016 earnings forecasts, a NLW of 60% 

of median earnings would be £9 in 2020. 
 

 Demand Pressures corporate pressure to the Council budget arising from Housing 
/Housing Revenue Account changes and School Funding changes 
 

 Apprentice Levy - As announced at the Autumn Statement 2015, an apprenticeship levy 
will be introduced in April 2017. One year impact to base budget in 2017 of £0.500m 
based on costings done of employment costs.  
 

 Significant loss of Government grant - within services as Government departments cut 

in year or after the settlement date  
 

 Workforce Management - Given the level of savings required to close the funding gap 
additional resources will be required to be identified to fund potential further workforce 
management costs. The 2016/17 base budget has £1.1m in contingency but additional 
resources may be needed from reserves.  

Page 35



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 19 

 

 

The Council has policies, procedures and guidance in place to manage changes in the 
workforce whether they come from budgetary pressures or other operational or 
organisational changes. These have been successfully applied in the past but the 
extent of the savings required to balance the budget will put pressure on all budgets, 
including staffing. 

 

The total cost of redundancy to the Council in 2015/16 totalled £6.893m (excluding 
schools staff). In addition, as part of the 2015/16 revenue outturn, a provision of 
£5.971m was created for redundancies in 2016/17 and the 2016/17 base budget 
includes a contingency of £1.1m for workforce management costs. Coupled with the 
provision, these resources reflect the anticipated redundancy costs as a result of the 
estimated funding gap. Further resource may be required from reserves once the 
savings for 2017/18 and beyond have been confirmed. 

 

Service Demand Pressures 

 Welfare Reform /Bad Debt -The Government’s changes to welfare reform including 
Universal Credit are likely to have an impact in relation to potential bad debt of council 
tax income and housing rents. In addition the impact of welfare reforms on residents’ 
ability to pay may result in increased demand for services in respect of benefits advice 
and local welfare assistance.  The outturn position for 2015/16 included a provision for 
Housing Benefit Overpayments bad debt totalling £3.2m and Council Tax bad debt of 
£2.3m.  
 

 Social Care -Includes continuing specific demographic pressure arising from demand 
for adults and children’s social care as well as the potential impact of future liabilities 
arising from the Care Act implementation and other contractual obligations. 
 

Strategic Investment (Revenue Cost of Capital)  

 Includes the revenue implications of the Council’s Strategic Investment programme 
outlined in future section of this report. The primary impact on the revenue budget of 
supporting capital investment is through the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and 
external interest charges. Supporting the level of capital investment contained within the 
Council’s capital programme is expected to require £30.5m of revenue resources in 
2016/17 to meet the borrowing costs. Assuming a similar level of capital investment 
over the medium term would see the annual cost rise by an average of £1.2m per 
annum to reach a total of £36.7m by 2021/22 as shown in the table below; 
 
 

Capital Financing Costs 
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

£m £m £m £m £m £m 

MRP - Excluding PFI Schemes 13.147 13.871 14.532 15.380 16.710 17.156 

MRP - Schools PFI 0.746 0.795 0.848 0.904 0.964 1.028 

MRP - Waste PFI 2.183 2.227 2.273 1.659 2.057 2.143 

Total MRP 16.076 16.893 17.652 17.943 19.731 20.327 

External Interest Excluding PFI  11.862 12.648 12.854 13.021 13.213 13.376 

External Interest - Schools PFI 1.619 1.570 1.517 1.461 1.401 2.280 

External Interest - Waste PFI 0.943 0.898 0.852 0.805 0.771 0.729 

Total External Interest 14.424 15.116 15.223 15.288 15.385 16.385 

Total Capital Financing Cost 30.500 32.009 32.875 33.231 35.116 36.712 

Variance 
 

+1.509 +0.866 +0.356 +1.885 +1.595 

Page 36



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 20 

 

 

8. Looking Ahead: Review of Funding and Income 
 

8.1 The government’s forecast reduction in core spending power per dwelling over the next four 
years for Gateshead is quoted as 1.2% compared to an England average of -0.4%. This 
position is not considered a true reflection and it is important to note the following points; 

 

a. The government’s future Council Tax figures assume average growth for each authority 
as well as an annual consumer price index (CPI) increase (which is an annual average of 
1.75%) as well as the 2% social care charge. It is assumed this occurs each year over 
the period up to 2019/20. This assumes that a local area can not only grow its base 
substantially year on year but that its residents will be willing and able to pay uplifts of up 
to 4% year on year. This moves funding for essential Council services from government 
funding to local residents. This does not take into account the mix of a Councils tax base 
and their ability to pay. In Gateshead 61% of our residents are in band A, the lowest 
property value banding. 

 

b. Business rates also include notional projections of growth of circa 3% per year. The 
retained rates that Gateshead Council will have available for funding  will depend on the 
extent to which business growth can be supported in the area as well being influenced by 
loss of income through the cost of appeals, refunds, changes in collection rates and the 
impact of rate avoidance. 

 

c. New homes bonus allocations are notional future estimates and cannot be taken with any 
certainty as the whole system is subject to change following consultation. 

 

d. Figures include £13.89m over 2017/18 to 2019/20 for the improved Better Care Funding 
which aims to redress some balance of need. However, the funding will only impact 
towards the end of parliament when the funding is urgently needed now.  

 

e. Only potential funding has been considered in this projection with no consideration given 
of the impact of the increasing costs in social care from increased demand, contractual 
inflationary increases and the costs of implementing the National Living Wage. Similar 
cost pressures are also seen in children’s social care and other Council services arising 
from inflation, pay increases, changes in national insurance contributions and additional 
transfers of responsibilities, many of which will wipe out the increases shown, when only 
looking at the potential resources available. 

 

f. Furthermore analysis per dwelling does not take account of the levels of deprivation of an 
area resulting in more demand for services such as children’s social care, homelessness 
and welfare support. More affluent areas benefit more from increases in their council tax 
bases and residents are more able to contribute to the cost of their service provision 

 

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 
 

8.2 As part of the 2016/17 settlement the Government provided indicative projections of core 

funding to 2019/20.  The funding gap is based on the RSG figures given up to 2019/20 and 

shows a reduction in RSG over the period of £22.2m (from £37.2m in 2016 to £15.0m in 2019). 

The equivalent actual reduction in RSG from 2015/16 to 2016/17 for comparative purposes 

was £10.5m or 22%. This is illustrated in the table below; 

Page 37



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 21 

 

 

 

8.3 The March 2016 budget announced reductions to public spending totalling £3.5 billion across 
all government departments in 2019/20 with no phasing.  There was no revision of the 2016/17 
four year Local Government Financial Settlement as part of this announcement but this could 
impact on Council grant funding in the future once further details are released.  

 

8.4 The MTFS assumes zero RSG from the year 2020 in line with government announcements of 
the intention to remove all core grants by the end of parliament. 

 

Retained Business Rates 
 

8.5 The 2013/14 finance settlement provided each local authority with its starting position under 
the business rates retention scheme.  These baseline calculations were fixed until the first 
intended reset in 2020. This means that Gateshead Council now retains 49% of any growth in 
business rates income above the prescribed baseline to reinvest in Services. The Government 
retains 50% with the remaining 1% being retained by the Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue 
Service. 
 

8.6 The system of business rate retention provides opportunities for local authorities to benefit 
from increased revenue funding raised from growth in local business rates but it also transfers 
significant risks from Central Government to local Councils, and in particular the requirement 
to meet half the cost of backdated appeals which was previously met in full by Central 
Government.  A further specific risk of the retention system exists in respect of national 
companies appealing to have one centrally assessed liability which, if successful, can result in 
100% of business rates income being retained by central government. 
 

8.7 Retained business rates reflect the baseline outlined in the 2016/17 indicative funding. At this 
stage no further retained business rates from economic growth are included for the period of 
the MTFS but this will be one of the key options to close the funding gap and projections have 
been modelled for internal budget planning.  The government have recently consulted on 
possible reforms to the business rates system in response to concerns from many business 
ratepayers that reform is required to make the system “fit for purpose in a 21st century 
economy”.  Given that local authorities have been made dependent upon the level of retained 
business rates as a source of finance for providing local services any changes to the system 
could significantly impact on the future sustainability of the Council’s financial position. 

 

Page 38



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 22 

 

 

Council Tax 
 

8.8 The current funding gap in the MTFS assumes no increase in council tax.  An increase would 
need to take into consideration the Government’s referendum principles which are currently 
based on the requirement to hold a referendum for increases of 2% or above. A 1% increase 
in Council Tax yields approximately £0.71m. In the 2016 settlement the government increased 
the referendum threshold to allow for authorities to charge a 2% adult social care precept. This 
2% was included in government funding projections of each local authority up to 2019/20. The 
current MTFS figures do not include any funding arising from a council tax increase including 
the social care precept however this will be factored into internal projections. Annual increases 
remain subject to the decision of both Cabinet and Council.  

 

Collection Fund 
 

8.9 The 2016/17 base budget does not include a contribution from the Collection Fund. The 
current gap assumes no further contributions as the position on the Collection Fund will be 
directly affected by the level of collection rates of both council tax and business rates which 
could be adversely affected by the economic downturn and changes to welfare reform. The 
final position on the Collection Fund for 2015/16 will be reflected in the 2015/16 Statement of 
Accounts.  

 

Other Grants 
 

8.10 Other grants include government grants that are used to finance general Council budgets. 
These include New Homes Bonus, Better Care Fund and Section 31 grant related to refunded 
costs by government for the business rate system. Given the announcement of reductions on 
a national basis in non-schools education grant funding assumptions for reductions each year 
for Education Services Grant have been included in the estimated budget gap. The MTFS 
assumes that by the end of parliament all other grants will taper off to nil to be replaced by the 
new funding regime under 100% rates retention.  

 

Public Health 
 

8.11 The Chancellor’s Autumn Statement confirmed that LAs’ funding for public health would be 
reduced by an average of 3.9% in real terms per annum until 2020. This equates to a 
reduction in cash terms of 9.6% over the same period. The Autumn Statement also confirmed 
that a central government grant, ring-fenced for use on public health functions, would continue 
for at least two more years. It has been confirmed by the Department of Health that there will 
be a reduction in the total grant of 2.2% in 2016/17 (to £17.380m) and a further reduction of 
2.5%in 2017/18 (indicative £16.952m) These totals have been included in the MTFS. In the 
absence of any other direction the MTFS has assumed that in line with government 
announcements public health grant is then rolled into the RSG allocation as additional 
responsibilities from 2018. This is subject to government consultation. 
 

Schools Funding System  
 

8.12 In 2016/17 the Council will receive an indicative £135.8m Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), 
ring-fenced for the education of children. From this amount the Department for Education (DfE) 
will recoup the funding for academies in Gateshead which is estimated to be £39m. The 
£96.8m retained after recoupment for academies is allocated between High needs, Schools, 
Early Years providers and other centrally held service areas. Funding for maintained schools 
and the providers of early years education is distributed on a formula basis in accordance with 
the Schools and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations.  Funding for 2, 3 and 4 year olds 
has been estimated by the DfE for 2016/17 at £9m as this will be confirmed in July 2016 based 
on actual take up. 

Page 39



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 23 

 

 

8.13 In addition, the Pupil Premium for 2016/17 will be £1,320 for primary school children and £935 
for secondary school children. This amount is paid per pupil entitled to a free school meal at 
any time in the last six years. Looked after Children receive Pupil Premium Plus at £1,900 per 
eligible child. The estimated entitlement for schools in Gateshead is £9.7m, of which an 
estimated £2.5m will be recouped for Academies. 

 

8.14 From 2017/18 there will be a new national funding formula for the schools and high needs 
blocks of the DSG. 2 year old funding is already distributed on a national formula basis. The 
national funding formula will operate on a ‘soft’ basis for 2017/18 and 2018/19, which means 
that the DfE will use the national funding formula to calculate each schools budget, but will 
then pass the total calculated for all Gateshead Schools to the Council who can then allocate 
the funding based on its own local formula (as it currently does), as agreed by Schools Forum. 
Further details are expected in a second stage consultation in July 2016.  

 

8.15 2017/18 will also see the introduction of the 30 hours free entitlement for 3 & 4 year olds with 
working parents and the introduction of the apprentice levy on schools.  

 

8.16 The DSG is required to be spent directly on the education of children, with the vast majority of 
funding going into schools, based on an allocation mechanism agreed by the Schools Forum, 
which has minority representation from the Council. Some schools funding is centrally retained 
by the Local Authority with the approval of schools forum to fund services for schools, such as 
the Ethnic Minority and Traveller Achievement Service, and the Behaviour and Attendance 
team. 
 

8.17 At 31 March 2016 surpluses for all schools in Gateshead totalled £7.046m for all maintained 
schools, a decrease of £0.770m from March 2015. 

 

Treasury Management 
 

8.18 The Council invests money in a wide range of financial institutions and the investment interest 
earned is used to support the delivery of Vision 2030. The major issue for treasury 
management continues to be the significant difference between investment rates and 
borrowing rates. 
 

8.19 Emphasis continues to be placed, in line with the Treasury Management Strategy, on 
mitigating counterparty risk by giving preference to security and liquidity. This has resulted in 
greater use of investments with higher security and increased liquidity. The Strategy continues 
to support a policy of limiting the need for external borrowing by the utilisation of internal funds. 

  

Fees and Charges  
 

8.20 The Council currently raises in the region of £17.8m from fees and charges, of which around 
£3.3m relate to statutory charges and £14.5m relate to non-statutory charges. The largest 
areas of non-statutory charges relate to Adult Services, Car Parking, Waste Services and 
Grounds Maintenance and Leisure which account for over £12m of the total charges, with 
Leisure being the largest amount of income generated.  The largest areas of statutory charges 
relate to Cemeteries and Crematoria, Planning and Car Parking. 

 

8.21 It is normal practice for the Council to set the standard increase for the annual review of fees 
and charges from 1 April each year in line with the movement in inflation. Fees and charges 
will be reviewed as part of the annual corporate work programme and the outcome of this 
review will inform the strategy on increases to fees and charges for 2017/18 onwards.  This will 
include the development of any policies in respect of discounts and concessions. Any impact 
on income budgets arising from these areas will be adjusted at the annual budget setting stage 
or will be consulted on as part of the budget proposal process. 

Page 40



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 24 

 

 

9. Capital & Prudential Borrowing 
 

Capital Investment in Gateshead 
 

9.1 The Council’s capital investment plans are set out in the capital programme, which the latest 

approved programme covering the period between the 2016/17 and 2020/21 financial years. 

The efficient and effective use of capital resources, including asset management, is 

fundamental to the Council achieving its medium and long term objectives. It is also critical to 

achieving the delivery of the required savings across the Council and providing the best 

possible services within Gateshead. 
 

9.2 Any capital investment decision will have implications for the revenue budget. The revenue 

costs over the lifetime of each proposed capital project are considered when the project is 

being developed to ensure that the impact can be incorporated within the Council’s financial 

plans and to demonstrate that the capital investment is affordable. Revenue implications may 

include the costs associated with supporting additional borrowing as well as any changes to the 

running costs associated with the asset or wider benefits to the Council such as the delivery of 

ongoing revenue budget savings or additional income through the generation of Business 

Rates, Council Tax or energy revenues. 
 

9.3 Over the last 10 years the Council has invested almost £1billion in funding capital projects 

within Gateshead including investment within the HRA, with average annual capital investment 

amounting to almost £100m during this period with a maximum programme of £153m in 

2009/10. 
 

9.4 The availability of resources to support capital investment has had a significant impact upon the 

level of capital programme that the Council can continue to support and in recent years the 

General Fund capital programme has fallen dramatically as shown in the following graph: 

 

Page 41



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 25 

 

 

9.5 In 2015/16, the Council spent £54m on capital projects, of which £36m related to the General 

Fund and the remaining £18m was spent on improving the Council’s housing stock. Capital 

investment in 2015/16 included projects aimed at encouraging economic growth and housing 

growth within Gateshead in addition to investment in low carbon energy infrastructure such as 

the District Energy Network and investment in the Council’s schools, technology and highway 

network. 
 

9.6 The planned capital investment from 2016/17 onwards continues to be set at a reduced level, 

given the limitations and pressures on the available capital and revenue resources. The 

approved five year Capital Programme for the period 2016/17 to 2020/21 had estimated £155m 

of planned capital investment (excluding Housing) and it is envisaged that additional projects 

will emerge over the period as major projects, such as investment in Gateshead Quays, 

continue to progress towards the delivery phase. The assumptions within the MTFS therefore 

assume capital investment and funding sources for the medium term as follows: 

 

9.7 Supporting capital investment resulted in revenue costs for the Council of almost £25m in 

2015/16, excluding PFI projects. The graph below highlights the revenue cost to the Council of 

supporting both historic and planned capital expenditure: 

Page 42



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 26 

 

 

 

Funding Capital Investment 
 

9.8 The Council’s capital finance plans must operate in accordance with the Prudential Framework. 

This framework has operated since April 2004 and allows the Council the freedom and flexibility 

to determine its own plans for capital investment as long as assurance can be provided that 

investment plans are prudent, affordable and sustainable.  

9.9 The Council cannot use any capital resources to fund revenue expenditure, but revenue 

resources can be used to fund capital costs.  

9.10 If expenditure meets the definition of capital then there are opportunities to finance the 

investment immediately when it is incurred using: 

• Capital receipts generated by disposing of existing assets; 
• External funding, grants or contributions from other parties; and 
• Direct contributions from available revenue balances. 
 

9.11 If these resources are not available to support capital investment, then the Prudential 

Framework allows the Council to borrow to fund capital expenditure. The Council’s underlying 

need to borrow is measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) and the Council must 

set aside resources to repay the borrowing over future financial years, known as the Minimum 

Revenue Provision (MRP). 

 

 

 

Page 43



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 27 

 

 

 

9.12 The Council aligns the repayment of debt to the useful life of the asset to which it relates and 

the Strategic Director, Corporate Resources will provide a statement to confirm the Council’s 

MRP policy as part of the budget setting process. 

9.13 The creation of an Accelerated Development Zone enables the Council to undertake prudential 

borrowing to fund capital investment in designated areas on Gateshead Quays and Baltic 

Business Quarter which can be supported by the retention of 100% of future business rate 

growth generated as a result of the initial investment. 

9.14 Since the introduction of the Prudential Framework, the Council has been required to borrow to 

fund an increasing proportion of the capital programme over the last 10 years. This is primarily 

as a result of the significant reductions in the availability of both external funding and capital 

receipts to support capital investment and means that there is an increasing impact on the 

Council’s revenue resources associated with supporting both historic and planned capital 

investment.  

9.15 The Council continues to explore external funding possibilities when developing capital projects 

to minimise the borrowing requirement as far as possible. Within the MTFS, assumptions have 

been made around the level of external funding in the future but detailed work programmes will 

not be committed to until the allocations have been confirmed. Projects and investment plans 

may therefore be re-prioritised depending on the availability of external funding. 

9.16 The availability of capital receipts has also reduced in recent years as a result of the property 

market. The Council has identified a programme of potential asset disposals and the progress 

is reviewed by the Council’s Land Development Group throughout the year. If additional capital 

receipts are generated during the year this provides the Council with the flexibility to consider 

the introduction of additional projects to the capital programme or the ability to reduce the 

borrowing requirement. 

9.17 In general, capital receipts from the sale of assets are treated corporately to allow the Council 

to target resources towards the highest priority projects, although there may be circumstances 

where a capital receipt must be used to fund a specific scheme.  

9.18 Following the adoption of the Council’s Core Strategy and Urban Core Plan, the Council is likely 

to secure additional capital receipts for sites as developments come forward. The Council is 

also likely to secure contributions from developers (including the potential introduction of 

Community Infrastructure Levy) to help fund the provision of strategic infrastructure that is 

necessary to support future developments and growth which may be used to support future 

capital investment, either as an addition to the capital programme or to displace the use of 

planned borrowing helping to reduce the revenue cost of supporting the capital programme. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 28 

 

 

Capital Investment Pressures 
 

9.19 Significant challenges and priorities for the Council’s capital investment over the medium term 

that are set out in the Council’s key strategies include: 

• Meeting essential health and safety and mandatory obligations, such as Equality Act 

improvements, to improve the accessibility and sustainability of Council owned assets; 

• Continuing to regenerate the Gateshead Quays and Baltic Business Quarter area as part of 

the Council’s Accelerated Development Zone, working with our Development Partner to 

build upon the successful delivery of iconic projects such as the Sage Gateshead and Baltic 

to create a significant new mixed-use development to help unlock economic growth and 

generate additional business rates and raise the profile of Gateshead; 

• Continuing to support the regeneration of Gateshead Centre to deliver a centre with the 

stature and vibrancy of a city and continuing to invest in improvements to local centres 

across Gateshead; 

• Improving the Council’s Corporate ICT infrastructure, equipment and systems to improve 

connectivity and ensure that the Council remains fit for the future and can provide services 

as efficiently and effectively as possible; 

• Investing in strategic infrastructure to support growth within Gateshead. This includes 

investment in areas such as transport infrastructure to provide an integrated transport 

system which meets demand and improves connectivity and accessibility as well as 

investment in the Council’s Schools to help increase capacity; 

• Investing in the provision of energy infrastructure, including the development of a Town 

Centre District Energy network to provide lower cost, lower carbon energy to support 

regeneration and economic development, generate income and provide long term 

resilience against rising energy prices; 

• Working with our private sector partner, Evolution Gateshead, to provide good quality, 

energy efficient homes to ensure that our neighbourhoods are sustainable; and 

• Rationalising the Council’s property portfolio to ensure that the Council operates an efficient 

and sustainable estate which is aligned to service delivery models, disposing of surplus 

properties to generate additional capital receipts. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 29 

 

 

10. Housing Revenue Account (HRA)  
 

10.1 In order to facilitate decision making and plan strategically for Housing in the future the Council 
continually updates its 30 year HRA Business plan. This plan considers the long term future of 
the housing stock alongside the short term plans. The plan contains information on estimates 
regarding the level of capital investment (including estate regeneration and maintaining 
decency), the anticipated levels of voids and right to buy sales and also the assumed level of 
income from rents and service charges. It also includes a provision for the Gateshead Housing 
Company’s management fee and plans around borrowing and repaying debt in the future. The 
HRA has £100m worth of loans maturing in the next five years. 
 

10.2 Although it is projected that the HRA reserve will stand at £18.188m as at the end of March 
2017 the impact of welfare reform, the required sale of high value properties and other 
pressures arising from Government guidance the Housing Capital Programme will deplete this 
reserve in coming years. To protect the Council in a self-financing regime a minimum balance 
for the HRA of £3m was approved by Council in February 2012. The current assumptions and 
projections in the 30 year HRA business plan are that this minimum balance will be reached by 
2019/20 and the HRA will no longer have reserves to the level held currently. 
 

10.3 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) expenditure for 2015/16 amounted to £78.783m with income 
of £83.006m, resulting in an increase to the reserve of £4.223m. The underspend achieved 
was mainly in relation to slippage in the Capital Programme and contingencies not being 
required.  
 

10.4 As a result of the Government policy to reduce rents the capital programme has been reduced 
in the coming years. The proposed allocation of resources from the HRA to support a Capital 
Programme for the next five years (2016/17 to 2021/22) totalling £98.4m over five years, will 
be kept under regular review by Cabinet. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 30 

 

 

11. Reserves 
 

11.1 The Local Government Finance Act 1992 requires local authorities to have regard to the level 
of reserves needed for meeting estimated future expenditure when calculating the budget 
requirement. In establishing reserves, the Council must comply with the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. The Strategic Director, Corporate 
Resources is required, as part of the budget setting process, to provide a statement on the 
adequacy of reserves. 
 

11.2 Reserve management is used to help absorb any specific unforeseen expenditure, e.g. for the 
impact of a large insurance claim, alongside maintaining reserves at a prudent and adequate 
level over a period of time. Much like using savings to offset monthly household bills the use of 
financial reserves cannot solve a budget problem outright but allows for smoothing of impacts 
or allows the Council to ride any short term situations before returning to normal. Thus 
reserves are mainly used to; 
 

 Soften the impact of cuts over a longer period of time 
 

 Invest in schemes that allow services to be delivered cheaper 
 

 Take “one-off hits” for the Council as a whole without the need to further reduce service   
budgets (e.g. changes to national insurance contributions or local tax regimes) 

 

 Provide capacity to absorb any non-achievement of planned budget reductions in a 
given year 

 

 To temporarily roll over unused portions of grants that can legally be used at a later 
date 
 

 To insure against major unexpected events (such as flooding) 
 

 To guard against general risk (i.e. saving up for unexpected events) 
 

 To guard against emergent specific risks, such as business rate appeals, council tax 
support funding cuts and welfare reform. These risks are predicted to continue 
increasing. 

Reserves Policy 

 

11.3 The Council’s policy on reserves is outlined within the MTFS principles as follows: 
 

 The Council will maintain its general reserve at a minimum of 3% of the net revenue 
budget to cover any major unforeseen expenditure. The Council will aim to balance its 
revenue budget over the period of the MTFS without reliance on the use of the general 
reserve. 
 

 The Council will maintain earmarked reserves for specific purposes which are 
consistent with achieving its key priorities. The use and level of earmarked reserves will 
be reviewed annually.   

 

 The Council’s general reserve is available to support budget setting over the period of 
the MTFS and usage should be linked to the achievement of financial sustainability over 
the medium term. 

Page 47



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 31 

 

 

Review of Reserves 2015/16 

11.4 The Council undertakes a review of all strategic reserves in line with the CIPFA guidance on 
Reserves and Balances (LAAP Bulletin No 99 July 2014 which recommends at least annually) 
and the requirements of the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. The review 
process covers each individual strategic reserve and identifies:- 
 

 The purpose for which the reserve is held. 

 An assessment of the appropriate level of the reserve to meet potential future liabilities in 
line with the Council’s reserves policy and aligned to the risk management framework. 

 Procedures for the reserve’s management and control. 

 A process and timescale for future reviews to ensure continuing relevance and adequacy. 
 

11.5 Following the 2015/16 Revenue Outturn, at 31 March 2016, the Council’s usable revenue 
reserves are £60.043m. Of this sum, £25.232m is held in earmarked reserves and £16.341m 
Council General Reserve. The remaining balance of £18.470m is ring-fenced and cannot be 
used to support the revenue budget and Council Tax requirement.  

 

11.6 A review of reserves was undertaken as part of the 2015/16 Revenue Outturn, reported to 
Cabinet on 14 June 2016, with the underspend position contributing to an increase in the 
Council’s general fund reserve. The movement on reserves supporting the revenue outturn are 
summarised as follows:- 

 

 
# Figures are Subject to External Audit                

* Ring Fenced reserves are not available to support the Revenue Budget and Council Tax Requirement 

Page 48



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 32 

 

 

11.7 An explanation of each reserve is shown below;  
 
General Reserve (£16.341 m at 31 March 2016) 

The General Reserve acts as a contingency and allows the Council to meet any unforeseen 

expenditure. It has been assessed at a minimum of 3% of the net revenue budget in line with 

the Council’s reserves policy and MTFS principles and this currently equates to a minimum of 

£6 million. The balance on this reserve has increased by £0.771m due to the positive revenue 

outturn position in 2015/16.  The 2016/17 budget earmarked £3.971m against this reserve to 

support the delivery of the savings proposals. 

Strategic Earmarked Reserves; 

Business Rates (£5.0m at 31 March 2016) 
This reserve has been created to mitigate the risk of current and future business rate valuation 

appeals and other risks associated with the business rates retention scheme. This area of risk 

was previously explicitly covered by the General Reserve. It is proposed that £5.0m is still the 

appropriate level for the Business Rates Reserve to prevent a major impact on the revenue 

budget in any year, however due to the volatility in the move to 100% rate retention this will 

need to be kept under constant review and may need to increase. 

Insurance (£3.0m at 31 March 2016) 
The reserve is to allow for possible claims against the Council which are not covered by external 

policies and to cover insured liability claims falling within the claims excess and policy stop loss.  

The reserve is based on an assessment of both insured and uninsured liabilities and claims 

potentially falling on the Council. It is proposed that £3.0m is still the appropriate level for the 

Insurance Reserve to prevent a major impact on the revenue budget in any year. 

Grant Claw-back (£1.314m at 31 March 2016) 
The reserve is for grant received which may need to be repaid. The reserve exists to mitigate 

the risk of potential claw-back of funding following European Audit of ERDF grant claims. 

Following a full review of projects this level is still considered prudent until programme closure. 

Gateshead Development Pool (£6.009m at 31 March 2016) 
This reserve has been used to support the redundancy scheme in previous years and further 

support to workforce management may be required in the future. 

Economic Growth (£3.456m at 31 March 2016) 
One of the key objectives of Vision 2030 and the Council Plan is to stimulate the local economy. 

Use of this reserve will enable the Council to support emerging opportunities to accelerate 

development and incentivise economic growth on a business case basis within the framework of 

the Gateshead Economic Growth Acceleration Plan 2013-18. 

Discretionary Social Fund (£0.957m at 31 March 2016) 
The Discretionary Social Fund was not fully utilised during 2014/15 and this was appropriated 

into this reserve to support the most vulnerable in society over the period of the MTFS, as the 

government confirmed that specific funding for this initiative would cease from 2015/16. Funding 

from this reserve will be drawn down to support in year social fund activities. 

 

 

Page 49



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 33 

 

 

Strategic Change (£2.500m at 31 March 2016) 
This reserve was created in 2014/15 to support the delivery of the refreshed Council Plan over 

the period to 2020.  This will support initiatives linked to the priorities within the plan and provide 

flexibility around interventions in support of outcomes, including investment in technology to 

deliver new ways of working. 

Budget Flexibility (£2.996m at 31 March 2016) 
This reserve was created in 2014/15 to allow flexibility to carry-forward appropriate under spend 

balances for reinvestment normally the following year. A total of £0.576m was transferred from 

this reserve to match expenditure incurred in 2015/16 with £1.689m appropriated into the 

reserve for use from 2016/17.  

Ringfenced; 
 

Schools LMS (£7.046m at 31 March 2016) 
Combined with the General Reserve, this reserve forms the General Fund but use of this 

reserve is ring-fenced to schools and there is a duty to report planned use to the Schools 

Forum. The reserve is made up of individual balances relating to each maintained school. 

Developer Contributions (£2.036m at 31 March 2016) 
This reserve, which is ring-fenced and not available to support the budget, consists of developer 

contributions in respect of agreed regeneration schemes following Section 38 and 106 

agreements. The movement on the reserve will fluctuate depending on the use of the 

contributions to support regeneration schemes such as play areas in areas of new housing. 

Dedicated Schools Grant (£3.357m at 31 March 2016) 
This reserve is ring-fenced for schools use and cannot be used for other priorities within the 

Council. Use of this reserve will be agreed by Schools Forum. 

Unapplied Revenue Grants / Receipts (£4.259m at 31 March 2016) 
This reserve was created as a result of changes to the Accounting Code of Practice whereby 

unused grants and contributions, without conditions attached, should be appropriated to 

reserves to fund future expenditure rather than creating creditors on the Balance Sheet 

Public Health (£1.772m at 31 March 2016) 
The responsibility for Public Health transferred to local authorities on the 1 April 2013. The 

funding is ring-fenced for future Public Health use. The 2016/17 budget has earmarked 

£0.849m against this reserve to support the delivery of the savings proposals within Public 

Health. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 34 

 

 

Reserves Summary 2016/17 to 2020/21                                                     

11.8 The following table illustrates the estimated use of all revenue reserves over the period to 
March 2021;  

 

 
 

11.9 Forecasts show that the Council will likely reach minimum balance on the general reserve 
during the period of the MTFS and Council may need to consider replenishment. 

 

11.10 The overall level of financial resources available to the Council is finite and therefore the 
continued use of reserves above a certain level cannot be sustained in the longer term without 
placing the Council’s financial position at risk. The MTFS recognises that the Council’s 
financial reserves are maintained at a prudent level to protect present and future Council 
services.  

 

11.11 In line with LAAP 99 the Council accepts that while balancing the annual budget by drawing on 
general reserves can be in certain circumstances a legitimate short term option it is not 
considered prudent to finance recurrent expenditure in this way.  Where this approach is 
adopted the Council will be explicit as to how such expenditure will be funded in the medium to 
long term. This approach was clearly stated when setting the 2016/17 base budget when 
£3.971m of general reserves were earmarked to allow additional time for agreed savings to be 
delivered.  The Council recognises that usage of reserves is one-off in nature and must be 
linked with expenditure and income plans to support financial sustainability in the medium 
term. 

Page 51



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 35 

 

 

12. Indicative Budget Forecasts 2017/18 to 2021/2022 
 

12.1 Indicative budget forecast models for the period 2017/18 to 2021/22 have been produced to 
reflect the issues identified as part of the review of the MTFS. 

 

 

12.2 The indicative budget forecast shows an estimated funding gap of around £92.3m for the five-
year period 2017/18 to 2021/22. 

 

12.3 There are a number of key risks associated with the assumptions in this report including 
delivery of economic growth to generate additional retained business rates, significant 
uncertainty in relation to funding reductions, the potential wider implications of the 
Government’s welfare reform agenda and uncertainty in relation to the Better Care Fund and 
the financial implications of the Social Care Act and Devolution. The forecasts and 
assumptions will be refreshed following the Autumn Statement and the Local Government 
funding settlement in December 2016. 

 
 
 

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

£m £m £m £m £m £m

217.679 Estimated Base Budget 210.009 220.410 231.317 246.771 258.903

(198.883) Estimated Funding (187.863) (162.418) (159.463) (166.575) (166.575)

18.796 Cumulative Funding Gap 22.146 57.991 71.854 80.196 92.328

18.796 Annual Funding Gap 22.146 35.845 13.863 8.342 12.132

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

£m £m £m £m £m £m

207.387 Net Revenue Budget 198.883 210.009 220.410 231.317 246.771

Cost Pressures:

1.592 Base Adjustments 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

1.360 Inflation (General) 0.900 0.950 0.900 0.900 0.850

0.337 Inflation (Contractural Social Care Fees) 1.350 1.350 1.350 1.350 1.350

5.030 Corporate (inc pay) 4.617 4.484 5.552 8.319 5.237

1.973 Demand (Social Care) 2.250 2.250 2.250 2.500 2.600

0.000 Demand  (Other) 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.500

0.000 Strategic Investment (Capital) 1.509 0.866 0.356 1.885 1.595

217.679 Total Cost Pressures 210.009 220.410 231.317 246.771 258.903

Funding:

(37.258) SFA - Revenue Support Grant (27.783) (21.423) (15.012) 0.000 0.000

(44.218) SFA - Retained Business Rates (44.218) (44.218) (44.218) (89.338) (89.338)

(9.951) SFA -Top Up Grant (10.147) (10.446) (10.780) 0.000 0.000

(77.236) Council Tax (77.236) (77.236) (77.236) (77.236) (77.236)

(30.209) Other Grants (inc Public Health) (28.479) (9.094) (12.217) 0.000 0.000

(0.011) Collection Fund 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

0.000 Reserves 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

(198.883) Total Funding (187.863) (162.418) (159.463) (166.575) (166.575)

18.796 Cumulative Funding Gap 22.146 57.991 71.854 80.196 92.328

18.796 Annual Funding Gap 22.146 35.845 13.863 8.342 12.132

Indicative Budget Forecasts

Indicative Budget Forecasts

Page 52



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 36 

 

 

13. Options to Close our Financial Gap 
 

13.1 The indicative budget forecasts outlined in Section 12 show that all funding options will need to 
be considered to deliver a balanced budget. 

 

13.2 Funding options include:- 
 

 Budget savings – savings removed from the base expenditure budget 
 

 Retained business rates from economic growth – increased income from retained 
business rates in the borough 

 

 Realignment of spending priorities with the Council Plan 2015-20 - reassesses the 
current base budget and the priorities for spending to ensure all resources are focused 
in delivery of the Council Plan 2015-20. 

 

 Capacity building within communities - seek to mitigate demand pressures within 
services by capacity building within communities including, where appropriate, work 
with partners and volunteers. 
 

 Additional external funding grant income - Specific general and one-off funding will 
continue to be sought in line with the principles of the MTFS although the climate for 
generation of external funding is more challenging than has been the case in previous 
years. 

 

 Additional income – additional income will be sought from a full review of fees and 
charges as part of the annual work programme and consideration of potential trading 
opportunities via the Change Programme Workstream 
 

 Council tax increases – over and above assumed increases but subject to increases in 
referendum thresholds set by central government  

 

 Use of reserves - At this stage the MTFS funding gap assumes no contribution from 
reserves to set the budget. Use of reserves is finite and priority should be given to 
invest to save initiatives to promote economic growth and increase the level of retained 
business rates 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 53



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 37 

 

 

14. Efficiency Plans 
 

14.1 The Council continues to look at opportunities to improve efficiency and reduce costs 
associated with service delivery so that any impact on our ability to ensure delivery of frontline 
services is limited. Last year we made efficiency and effectiveness savings of approximately 
£8.7m, achieved by reducing the Council’s property portfolio, reductions in senior management 
posts, implementing service reviews, deleting vacant posts from the Council’s employee 
establishment, as well as reducing the cost of supplies and services. Through our Change 
Programme we are maximising the contribution that employees make to the Council, primarily 
through the implementation of the Workforce Strategy and reviewing how we manage and use 
buildings, to ensure maximum efficiency and effectiveness. 
 

14.2 We have acknowledged in the Council Plan 2015-2020 that in order to deliver on the shared 
outcomes, one of the key policy directions we need to do as an organisation, is to work 
differently. This plan focuses on what we believe we need to do as a Council if we are to 
achieve our collective ambitions. It sets out some clear policy directions, which will help the 
Council, make choices about where limited resources should be focussed and what our 
changing roles and responsibilities will mean for our residents, our employees, our buildings, 
and our relationship with partners. 
 

14.3 The Council has also been able to reduce the number of buildings from which it operates, and 
continues to progress a programme of rationalisation of its portfolio through its Corporate 
Asset Management Strategy & Plan 2015-20, enabling revenue savings. During 2014/15 a 
further 23 buildings were declared surplus to requirements. This builds on the 159 properties 
which were removed from the portfolio between October 2010 and March 2015 generating 
some £2m of savings. Rationalisation of the portfolio continues to be a priority and throughout 
2015/2016 further opportunities for consolidation and rationalisation of the portfolio have been 
progressed as a result of which the Council has been able to declare a number of additional 
buildings surplus to requirements and so now operates out of 243 buildings for the purpose of 
service delivery, of which five are leased from private providers. 
 

14.4 The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) wrote to each Council in 
March setting out the details of the multi-year settlement offer and the process for acceptance. 
Efficiency plans must show the further saving opportunities created by the greater certainty of 
a 4-year budget. Councils have until Friday 14 October 2016 to respond to the offer and it is 
intended that the Council accept the Government’s offer. 
 

14.5 The four year settlement will allow for more informed financial planning and budget savings will 
be identified in line with Council Plan outcomes, the vast majority of which will form part of the 
Council’s change programme  and will be subject to detailed local consultation as part of the 
annual budget process. 

 

14.6 The settlement figures alongside internal modelling of indicative projections of council tax and 
business rate funding has formed the basis of three year service efficiency plans up to 2019. 
Internal modelling shows that if local growth is achieved this can potentially reduce the 
cumulative gap from £92.3 to £65.4m.  

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 54



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 38 

 

 

14.7 Indicative revised funding levels including local growth projections are shown below;  
 

 
 

 
 

14.8 Indicative future budgets link to planned achievement of local growth of rates, council tax and 
trading activities. A three year approach to 2019/20 has allowed for improved financial 
strategies linked closely to the outcomes of the Council plan and resilient reserve 
management. 

 

14.9 Our proactive financial planning will allow us to continue to work closely in collaboration and 
partnership with our neighbouring authorities and across public sector partners. In particular 
work continues to be progressed towards greater alignment and integration of health and 
social care to meet our aspirations for the health and wellbeing of local people, working with 
health partners e.g. through work to progress new models of care for our local health and care 
economy and through initiatives such as our Better Care Fund Plan for Gateshead which will 
see the transition of its core schemes to new models of care. More broadly, the Council has 
and will continue to work with health partners to develop and implement a Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan for Northumberland and Tyne & Wear, which will also have a specific 
focus on the Newcastle Gateshead local health economy. 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

£m £m £m £m £m

Cumulative Funding Gap 22.146 57.991 71.854 80.196 92.328

Annual Funding Gap 22.146 35.845 13.863 8.342 12.132

Local Growth  Funding Options

Business Rates NET Growth Cumulative (0.104) (0.789) (1.106) (3.658) (4.356)

Council Tax Base Growth Cumulative (0.687) (1.894) (3.012) (4.093) (5.211)

Council Tax Increase (est 3.99%) cumulative (3.109) (6.390) (9.847) (13.485) (17.313)

Cumulative Funding Gap (After Growth) 18.246 48.918 57.889 58.960 65.448

Annual Funding Gap (After Growth) 18.246 30.672 8.971 1.071 6.488

Indicative Budget Forecasts

Page 55



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 39 

 

 

14.10 The Council already has a number of these arrangements in place such as; 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Gateshead Trading Company a wholly owned subsidiary of Gateshead Council 
limited by shares. 2010 was the first active year of trading. 
 

 Gateshead Regeneration Partnership - a joint venture commenced 2012 with 

Galliford Try, Home Group and the Council. To build 2,400 homes across 19 sites in 

Gateshead over 15 – 20 years. 
 

 ALMO – Gateshead Housing Company established in 2004, is responsible for 

nearly 20,000 homes, with a management agreement in place with Gateshead 

Council until 2020. 
 

 Gateshead Quays – a collaborative partnership with Patrizia UK and Ask Real 

Estate (appointed2015). 
 

 PFI - South Tyne & Wear Waste Management Partnership established in 2007 

between Gateshead, Sunderland and South Tyneside Councils. Service 

commenced 2014 and will run to March 2039.  
 

 PFI – Pinnacle Schools Gateshead Limited (PSG) to design, build, finance and 

operate seven new schools in 2007 and 2008. PSG will manage and maintain these 

until 2033. 
 

 Energy Services Company (ESCO) agreed 2015. Since 2011, the Council, with 

support from WSP/Parsons Brinckerhoff, has been developing a district energy 

network. Construction of the energy centre began in 2015. 
 

 Various joint commissioning arrangements are in place across public health, 

children and adults services. 
 

 Collaboration partnerships with other LAs e.g. Scape System Build Ltd (2006) – 

acts as a contracting authority and central purchasing body, joint arrangements 

regarding traffic lighting in Tyne and Wear, River Tyne Debris Clearance Service, 

Tyne and Wear Archives & Museums, Tyne and Wear Specialist Conservation 

Team. 
 

 Collaborative partnership with public service organisations – North East Public 

Service Academy and Northumbria University Trinity Square Accommodation 
 

 Community Asset Transfer - 20 community centres, 3 leisure facilities and 5 

volunteer community libraries are operating under Asset Transfer 

Page 56



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 40 

 

 

15. Consultation 
 

15.1 The Council will continue to strive to deliver efficient services that provide value for money. 
Budget proposals will be prepared following budget guidance and these will be made available 
for public consultation. 
 

15.2  The Council’s budget planning framework is supported by the development of Equality Impact 
Assessments (EIAs) for the budget proposals, identifying possible disproportionate impact in 
relation to the protected characteristics as described within the Equality Act 2010.  The EIAs 
will also identify potential mitigation where applicable. Specific consultations will also be 
launched throughout the year and are made available via the Councils website. 

 

15.3 The Council maintains its strong commitment to equality, believing that all groups and 
individuals within the community and its workforce have equal opportunity to benefit from the 
services and employment it provides. EIAs help the Council to arrive at informed decisions and 
to make the best judgements about how to target resources. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 57



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 41 

 

 

16. Risk Assessment 
 

16.1 A comprehensive financial risk assessment is undertaken for the Revenue and Capital Budget 
setting process to ensure that all risks and uncertainties affecting the Council’s financial 
position are identified.  These are reviewed each year as part of the refresh of the MTFS. The 
key strategic financial risks to be considered in developing the MTFS are as follows:- 
 

Risk Likelihood Impact Risk Management 

1. Future 

available 

resources less 

than assumed. 

Possible 
 
 
 

 

High 
 
 
 
 

 

Annual review of reserves and reserves policy to 
identify future resources.  Assumptions on funding for 
2016/17 and beyond are based on national policy 
context outlined in various government documents.  A 
prudent approach has been adopted based on 
previous years’ experience as well as using regional 
network contacts to inform modelling. 

2. Volatility of 

Business Rates 

funding given 

uncertainty 

around impact 

of appeals 

Likely Medium Volatility of funding stream outside of Council control 

but impact mitigated by establishment of specific 

earmarked reserve and financial monitoring 

framework. Modelling of potential impacts is used to 

inform financial planning. 

3. Public Health 

funding not 

sufficient to 

meet 

responsibilities 

Possible Medium Funding confirmed for 2016/17 and indicative 2017/18 
Lack of certainty of continuation of grant going forward 
is a significant risk. 
 

4. Pay Awards, 

fee increases 

and price 

inflation higher 

than assumed 

Possible 
 
 

 

Medium 
 
 

 

Impact of potential increases mitigated by central 
contingency budget for pay, price increases and care 
fees. 

 

5. Future 

spending plans 

underestimated 

Possible 
 
 

Medium 
 
 

Service planning process identifies future budget 
pressures and these have informed the indicative 
Budget Forecasts.  Effective Budget Monitoring 
Framework is in place. 
 

6. Anticipated 

savings/ 

efficiencies not 

achieved 

 

Possible 
 
 
 

High 
 
 
 

Regular monitoring and reporting takes place but the 
size of the funding cuts increase the likelihood of this 
risk. Non achievement of savings would require 
compensating reductions in planned spending within 
services.  MTFS principle to maintain General 
Reserve at 3% of net revenue budget to cover 
unforeseen events.  Recent track record of delivery 
provides some assurance. 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 42 

 

 

Risk Likelihood Impact Risk Management 

7. Revenue 

implications of 

capital 

programmes not 

fully anticipated 

Unlikely 
 
 
 

Low 
 
 
 

Capital bid approval framework identifies revenue 
implications and links to Council priorities. Full 
analysis of revenue implications assessed and 
considered in scenario planning. Reduced Capital 
Programme reduces this risk. 

8. Income 

targets not 

achieved 

Possible 
 
 

Medium 
 
 

Current economic climate likely to impact. Regular 
monitoring and reporting. Full review of fees and 
charges is undertaken on an annual basis linked to 
Change Programme.  

9. Budget 

monitoring not 

effective 

Unlikely 
 
 

 

High 
 
 

 

Regular monitoring and reporting in line with corporate 
framework.  Action plans developed to address 
problem areas. Regular reports to Strategy Group and 
Cabinet. Track record of delivering budget. 

10. Exit 

strategies for 

external funding 

leasing/tapering 

not met 

Possible 
 
 
 
 

Medium 
 
 
 
 

Regular monitoring and reporting. Government policy 
to remove ring fencing provides greater flexibility.   

11. Loss of 

principal deposit 

 

Unlikely 
 
 
 
 

Medium 
 
 
 
 
 

Limited by the controls in the Treasury Management 
Strategy which prioritise security of deposit over 
returns.  Impact limited due to the strategy of a diverse 
portfolio with top rated institutions backed by 
Government guarantees and internal funding. 

12. Interest 

rates lower than 

expected 

Unlikely 
 
 
 
 

Low 
 
 
 
 

Regular review, monitoring and reporting on interest 
rates.  Prudent assumptions on likely interest rates for 
2017/18 and onwards have been incorporated into the 
MTFS. 
 

13. Collection 

rates for 

retained 

business rates 

and council tax 

lower than 

anticipated 

Possible 
 
 

High 
 
 

Impact mitigated by the review of bad debt provisions. 
Proactive approach to stimulating economic growth 
including pump priming from reserves. Monitoring of 
Collection Fund is formally incorporated into the 
revenue monitoring process. 

14. Changes to 

Government 

policy including 

Health and 

Social Care 

integration and 

Welfare Reform 

Likely High Best estimates of impact of Government policy on 
funding factored into MTFS. Estimates are prudent 
and based on recent experience. Specific areas of 
uncertainty identified and subject to focussed actively, 
close monitoring and review. Risks of Better Care 
Fund are managed through the joint Council/CCG 
Better Care Fund Programme Board. The impacts of 
welfare reform continue to be planned for and 
monitored through the Council Scrutiny Framework. 

Page 59



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 43 

 

 

Risk Likelihood Impact Risk Management 

15. Lack of 

funding and 

influence 

through 

Government 

Devolution 

reforms. 

Possible High Additional responsibilities arising from any new 
arrangements will constantly be assessed and the 
Council holds in year contingency as well as a general 
fund reserve to meet any unforeseen costs 

16. All MTFS 

risks not 

adequately 

identified 

Unlikely Low Council’s Risk Management Framework ensures all 
operational and strategic risks are identified as part of 
the annual service planning process. 

17.Financial 

budget impacts 

of UK’s vote to 

leave the 

European Union 

Likely Medium 
/High 

Continue to work collaboratively with treasury advisors 
to assess potential budget impacts whilst the 
Government attempts to ensure a smooth transition to 
a new economic relationship between the U.K. and 
the EU, including clarifying the procedures and broad 
objectives that will guide the process. 

 

  

Page 60



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 44 

 

 

17. Conclusion 
 

17.1 The review of the MTFS has again been undertaken against a background of significant 
reductions and changes in grant funding and increasing costs due to service pressures. These 
factors could jeopardise the Council’s sustainable financial position unless budget savings 
continue to be delivered alongside the delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 

17.2 The MTFS covers five years commencing after the final year of the Government’s current 
spending review period.  Funding beyond 2016/17 remains uncertain although all indications 
are that austerity measures are likely to continue throughout the medium term. 
 

17.3 The MTFS identifies a potential funding gap of £92.3m in the years from 2017/18 to 2021/22. 
This funding gap comes on top of budget savings of £130m that have already been taken from 
budgets by this Council since 2010. 
 

17.4 The MTFS supports the requirement to continue a rolling programme of internal indicative 
budget setting and efficiency plans to bridge an estimated £71.8m funding gap covering 
2017/18 and 2019/20. 
 

17.5 Although the financial context continues to be increasingly challenging and uncertain the 
Council has a track record of identifying and delivering significant savings and achieving 
budget outturn under agreed budget, supported by a framework of effective financial planning. 
This approach will need to continue to ensure that a sustainable medium-term financial 
position can be maintained. The approach will need to be built upon the delivery of significant 
changes in service delivery arising from effective decision making at the appropriate pace. 

 

17.6 The Council will continue to keep the MTFS under review given the high degree of uncertainty 
surrounding the potential impact on Government policy and Government funding decisions in 
relation to Local Government arising from the European referendum result. 

 

 

  

Page 61



 

Gateshead Council Medium Term Financial Strategy Page 45 

 

 

Further Information 
 __________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Web links:  
 

 Gateshead Council:   www.gateshead.gov.uk 
   
 Council Finance:   http://www.gateshead.gov.uk/Council Finance 
 
 Annual Statement of Accounts:  http://www.gateshead.gov.uk/Council finance statement 
 

Council Plan 2015-2020  http://www.gateshead.gov.uk/Council plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 62

http://www.gateshead.gov.uk/
http://www.gateshead.gov.uk/Council%20and%20Democracy/finance/home.aspx
http://www.gateshead.gov.uk/Council%20and%20Democracy/finance/statement.aspx
http://www.gateshead.gov.uk/Council%20and%20Democracy/About-the-Council/policies/council-plan.aspx


 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

14 July 2016 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 
2016/17 – FIRST QUARTER REVIEW 

 

Jane Robinson, Chief Executive 

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and Governance 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
  

1. The purpose of this report is to inform of the latest position on the 2016/17 
capital programme and Prudential Indicators at the end of the first quarter to 
30 June 2016.  It also assesses the variances from the approved programme 
and details the proposed financing of the capital programme.  The report also 
considers the impact of CIPFA’s Prudential Code on the capital programme 
and the monitoring of performance against the statutory Prudential Indicators. 
 

2. The original budget for the capital programme for 2016/17 totalled £71.069m 
and the projected year end expenditure at the end of the first quarter is now 
£76.297m.  The proposed increase of £5.228m is largely as a result of 
slippage in the programme from 2015/16. 
 

3. CIPFA’s Prudential Code advises the regular monitoring of performance 
against the prudential indicators which regulate borrowing and investment.  
Targets and limits for the prudential indicators for 2016/17 were agreed at 
Council on 23 February 2016.  Borrowing and investment levels have 
remained within the limits set by Council. 
 

4. The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report 
including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating 
their recommendation. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5. It is recommended that Council: 

 

i) Approves all variations to the 2016/17 Capital Programme as detailed in  
Appendix 2 of the attached report as the revised programme 

 
ii) Approves the financing of the revised programme 

 
iii) Confirms that the capital expenditure and capital financing requirement  

indicators have been revised in line with the revised budget and that 
none of the approved Prudential Indicators set for 2016/17 have been 
breached 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 of 5  

 

  REPORT TO CABINET 

   12 July 2016 

 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators 2016/17 

– First Quarter Review 

 
REPORT OF:   Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Corporate Resources 

 
 
Purpose of the Report  
 
1.  This report sets out the latest position on the 2016/17 capital programme and 

Prudential Indicators at the end of the first quarter to 30 June 2016. The report 
assesses reasons for the variances from the approved programme and details the 
proposed financing of the capital programme. In addition the report considers the 
impact of CIPFA’s Prudential Code on the capital programme and the monitoring of 
performance against the statutory Prudential Indicators. 

 
Background  
 
2.  The original budget for the capital programme for 2016/17, as agreed by Council on 

23 February 2016, totalled £71.069m. The projected year end expenditure at the end 
of the first quarter is now £76.297m. The proposed increase of £5.228m is largely as 
a result of slippage in the programme from 2015/16 which was reported to Cabinet 
on 14 June 2016. 

 
3. The proposed increase to the capital programme at the first quarter comprises of the 

following movements: 
 £m 
Slippage of planned capital expenditure from 2015/16 4.192 
Increased borrowing/external funding/contributions 3.642 
Re-profiling of capital expenditure to future years (2.331) 
Other reductions (0.275) 

Total Variance 5.228 

 
4.  The proposed slippage in the capital programme is resourced by external funding 

and prudential borrowing, and the Council continues to manage the available 
resources in a flexible manner to ensure that the use of external resources is 
maximised. 

 
5. A total of £4.192m of slippage has been identified on a number of key schemes 

throughout the capital programme which has been carried forward into 2016/17, with 
resources, from the 2015/16 financial year original capital budget. 

 
6. The slippage includes £1.185m relating to the Council’s Town Centre District Energy 

Network as a result of an amendment to the project delivery programme following 
delays experienced by the Contractor during the delivery of the planned works. 
Further connection and extension costs have not yet been reflected in the 
programme as these are still subject to the outcome of ongoing commercial 
discussions with customers. Further updates on this position are expected during the 

Page 65



 2 of 5  

 

second quarter and the resources will be included within the programme when there 
is sufficient certainty around the delivery programme. 

 
7. In addition, a further £0.811m of slippage relates to the delivery of the Gateshead 

element of the Great North Cycleway scheme after structural issues were 
encountered during the delivery of the project. This phase of the scheme is expected 
to complete during the second quarter. 

 
8. A total of £1.832m of slippage has been reflected in the revised projections for 

investment to the Council’s housing stock within the HRA programme, primarily 
relating to schemes within the ongoing Decent Homes Investment Programme. 
However this has been offset by a re-profiling of expenditure to future years of 
£1.873m resulting in an overall reduction within the HRA of £0.241m. The reduction 
relates to the re-profiling of investment in Regent Court following further discussions 
around the proposed technical solution and progression of the design work. 

 
9. In addition to the resources that have been carried forward from 2015/16, the Council 

has also included £1.7m of additional resources to meet the costs associated with 
the Council’s contribution towards the share of S106 costs that have been incurred 
relating to the development of the Birtley Northside area. This follows a decision by 
Persimmon not to exercise their option to acquire the remaining site for development; 
the capital receipt was originally intended to provide the funding required to meet the 
Council’s contribution. The Council is now considering the alternative options to 
progress the development of the site. 

 
10. The Council has also received additional external funding amounting to £1.556m. 

This includes £0.313m of confirmed Basic Need funding to address capacity issues 
within the Council’s Schools. Public Health England funding of £0.280m has also 
been received relating to a project delivered in partnership with Changing Lives to 
help acquire empty properties and bring them back into use to support recovery from 
substance misuse within the community. 

 
Proposal  
 
11. The report identifies planned capital expenditure of £76.297m for the 2016/17 

financial year. The expected resources required to fund the 2016/17 capital 
programme are as follows: 

 
 £m 
Prudential Borrowing 39.542 
Capital Grants and Contributions 12.226 
Major Repairs Reserve (HRA) 22.029 
Capital Receipts 2.500 

Total Capital Programme 76.297 

 
 
12.  CIPFA’s Prudential Code advises the regular monitoring of performance against the 

prudential indicators which regulate borrowing and investment. Targets and limits for 
the prudential indicators for 2016/17 were agreed at Council on 23 February 2016 
and borrowing and investment levels have remained within these limits. 

 

Page 66



 3 of 5  

 

Recommendations 
 
13.  Cabinet is asked to:  
 

(i) Recommend to Council that all variations to the 2016/17 Capital Programme 
as detailed in Appendix 2 are agreed as the revised programme. 

 
 (ii) Recommend to Council the financing of the revised programme. 
 

(iii)  Confirm to Council that the capital expenditure and capital financing 
requirement indicators have been revised in line with the revised budget and 
that none of the approved Prudential Indicators set for 2016/17 have been 
breached. 

  
 For the following reasons: 
 

(i) To ensure the optimum use of the Council’s capital resources in 2016/17. 
 
(ii) To accommodate changes to the Council’s in-year capital expenditure plans. 
 
(iii) To ensure performance has remained within the approved Prudential Limits. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
CONTACT:  David Mason extension 3686    

Page 67



 4 of 5  

 

  APPENDIX 1 
 
 Policy Context  
 
1. The proposals within this report are consistent with the objectives contained within 

the Council’s corporate Capital Strategy and will contribute to achieving the 
objectives and priority outcomes set out in Vision 2030 and the Council Plan. 

  
 Background 
 
2. The original budget for the capital programme for 2016/17, as agreed by Council on 

23 February 2016, totalled £71.069m. 
 
3. The projected year-end expenditure was £76.297m at the end of the first quarter. 
 
4. The £5.228m variance is due to a combination of slippage from the previous year, 

the review of existing schemes, the receipt of additional resources and other 
variances. All variations in the programme during the first quarter are detailed in 
Appendix 2. 
 

5. Appendix 3 summarises the original budget and actual year end payments by 
Corporate Priority.  The budget, projected year end payments and comments on the 
progress of each scheme are detailed in Appendix 4. 
 

6. The Prudential Code sets out a range of Prudential Indicators that were agreed by 
the Council on 23 February 2016. Performance against the indicators for 2016/17 is 
set out in Appendix 5.  

 
 Consultation 
 
7. The Leader of the Council has been consulted on this report. 

 
 Alternative Options 
 
8. The proposed financing arrangements are the best available in order to ensure the 

optimum use of the Council’s capital resources in 2016/17. 
 
 Implications of Recommended Option  
 
9. Resources: 
 

a) Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Corporate Resources 
confirms that the financial implications are as set out in the report. 

 
 b) Human Resources Implications – There are no human resources 

 implications arising from this report. 
 

c) Property Implications - There are no direct property implications arising from 
this report. Capital investment optimises the use of property assets to support 
the delivery of corporate priorities. The property implications of individual 
schemes will be considered and reported separately. 

 

Page 68



 5 of 5  

 

10. Risk Management Implications - Risks are assessed as part of the process of 
monitoring the programme and in respect of treasury management.  The Cabinet will 
continue to receive quarterly reports for recommendation of any issues to Council, 
together with any necessary action to ensure expenditure is managed within 
available resources. 

 
11. Equality and Diversity Implications - There are no equality and diversity 

implications arising from this report. 
 
12. Crime and Disorder Implications - There are no direct crime and disorder 

implications arising from this report. 
 
13. Health Implications - There are no health implications arising from this report. 
 
14. Sustainability Implications - The works will help to make the environment more 

attractive and reduce health and safety hazards. 
 
15. Human Rights Implications - There are no direct human rights implications arising 

from this report. 
 
16. Area and Ward Implications - Capital schemes will provide improvements in wards 

across the borough. 
 
17. Background Information 
 

i. Report for Cabinet, 23 February 2016 (Council 25 February 2016) - Capital 
Programme 2016/17 to 2020/21. 

ii. Report for Cabinet, 14 June 2016 – Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators 
2015/16 – Year End Outturn. 

 
  
 
 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Reason for 

Movement

Vision 2030 Group Project Title Total 

(£'000)

INCREASE

CAE Flood Alleviation Investment 390

School Basic Need & Condition Investment 654

Schools Devolved Formula Funding 150

CAE Chase Park Restoration 82

CWL Changing Lives 280

Land of Oak and Iron 32

Quay Wall 90

Salix Energy Efficiency Works 10

CRS Technology Plan: Infrastructure 90

City of Gateshead CAE City Boulevard 80

Creative Gateshead PEG GRP Public Art 54

Active & Healthy 

Gateshead
CSG Northside Birtley 1,730

All Round Camera System for Collection Vehicles 23

Bus Based Major Transport Scheme 85

Gateshead Millennium Bridge Strategic Maintenance 30

Gateshead Town Centre District Energy Network 1,185

Great North Cycleway 811

Public Realm Improvement 33

s106 Highways Works Borough wide 18

Street Lighting Column Replacement 135

CWL Infant Free School Meals Funding 40

Decent Homes - Investment Programme 890

Door Entry System Upgrades 161

External Wall Insulation Works to Non-Traditional Properties 524

Fire Safety Works - General 57

Lift Replacement / Refurbishment 10

Replacement of Communal Electrics 10

T-fall Insulation 26

Timber Replacements 5

Improvement Works - Boiler Plant Renewal 35

Estate Regeneration - Chandless 30

Public Realm Improvements 84

Total Increases 7,834

HRA

Sustainable 

Gateshead CWL

Active & Healthy 

Gateshead

CAE

CAE

APPENDIX 2

Additional 

External 

Funding

Sustainable 

Gateshead

Slippage from 

2015/16

Sustainable 

Gateshead

Other 

Increases

P
age 71



Reason for 

Movement

Vision 2030 Group Project Title Total 

(£'000)

APPENDIX 2

Reductions

CAE Local Transport Plan -75 

HRA Delivery of Older Persons Strategy -200 

CRS Technology Plan: Transformation Through Technology -458 

Regent Court Improvement Works -1,350 

Estate Regeneration - Bleach Green -45 

Estate Regeneration - Clasper Village -128 

Estate Regeneration - Dunston -350 

Total Reductions -2,606 

Grand Total 5,228

HRA

Other 

Reductions

Sustainable 

Gateshead

Sustainable 

Gateshead

Slippage to 

2017/18

P
age 72



CAPITAL SUMMARY APPENDIX 3

Revised 

Forecast Q1

Variance Actual Spend

30 June 2016 30 June 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000

Active & Healthy Gateshead 2,615 4,707 2,092 105

City of Gateshead 9,695 9,775 80 745

Creative Gateshead 85 139 54 0

Gateshead Goes Global 5,125 5,125 0 6

Sustainable Gateshead 53,549 56,551 3,002 3,892

TOTAL 71,069 76,297 5,228 4,748

Vision 2030 Approved 

Budget

P
age 73



APPENDIX 4

Vision 2030 Group Project Title Approved 

2016/17 

Allocation 

(£'000)

 Revised 

Q1 

Allocation 

(£'000)

2016/17 

Actual 

Spends to 

date (£'000)

Comments

Chase Park Restoration 490 572 0 Additional external funding

Equality Act 2010 (former DDA) 200 200 16

Falls Prevention 100 100 22

Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) 1,750 1,750 68

Telecare Equipment 75 75 0

Changing Lives 0 280 0

Additional Public Health Funding for renovation of 14 properties 

across Gateshead

Total Active & Healthy Gateshead 2,615 2,977 105

City Boulevard 50 130 95
Additional LTP funding required for NWL design costs to 

relocate water main
Coatsworth Road Regeneration - THI 580 580 0

Development Site Preparation Works 520 520 34

Keelman Homes - Affordable Housing Development 500 500 500

New Build Housing (Weathercock Lane) 210 210 15

Non Operational Portfolio - Strategic Investment Plan 400 400 31

Northside Birtley 0 1,730 0
Contribution towards s106 costs following Persimmon not 

exercising their option to develop remaining site

ADZ Investment – BBQ 5,500 5,500 1

ADZ Investment - Gateshead Quays 650 650 0

Empty Property Programme 2015/18 145 145 3

Housing JV - Brandling 350 350 0

Urban Core - Creative Quarter 50 50 3

Urban Core - Exemplar Neighbourhood 350 350 0

Urban Core - Retail Quarter 90 90 0

Housing JV - Bensham & Saltwell 300 300 64

Total City of Gateshead 9,695 11,505 745

Broadband Delivery UK 85 85 0

GRP Public Art 0 54 0 Additional external funding to be spent Q3 2016/17

Total Creative Gateshead 85 139 0

Additional Childcare Provision 280 280 0

Ravensworth Terrace Primary School 4,845 4,845 6

Total Gateshead Goes Global 5,125 5,125 6

CAE

CWL

Active & 

Healthy 

Gateshead

City of 

Gateshead

CAE

CSG

PEG

Creative 

Gateshead

PEG

Gateshead 

Goes Global

CWL

P
age 74



APPENDIX 4

Vision 2030 Group Project Title Approved 

2016/17 

Allocation 

(£'000)

 Revised 

Q1 

Allocation 

(£'000)

2016/17 

Actual 

Spends to 

date (£'000)

Comments

All Round Camera System for Collection Vehicles 65 88 84 Final element of installation of camera equipment.

Birtley Cemetery Extension 140 140 0

Bus Based Major Transport Scheme 90 175 1 Slippage due to land acquisition issues. 

Civic Centre Workspace Strategy 800 800 18

Crawcrook Quarry Restoration 100 100 0

Energy Network Extension - Trinity Square 400 400 0

Flood Alleviation Investment 210 600 0 Additional external funding 

Gateshead Millennium Bridge Strategic Maintenance 150 180 1 Slippage due to delays obtaining marine licence

Gateshead Town Centre District Energy Network 9,200 10,385 1,198 Works slipped from 2015/16 - excludes £2.5m of potential 

extension costsGreat North Cycleway 70 881 380 2015/16 programme slipped.  Scheme due to complete in 16/17 

Q2Health & Safety 500 500 21

Land of Oak and Iron 195 227 0 Additional match funding required 

Local Transport Plan 4,900 4,825 302 Funding used to support City Boulevard project

Metrogreen 200 200 0

Public Realm Improvement 80 113 20
Slippage of 15/16 resources to be used for improvements to 

public spaces litter bins

Quay Wall 0 90 74 Additional unforeseen collapses in quay wall 

Replacement of Fleet and Horticultural Equipment 2,600 2,600 40

Salix Energy Efficiency Works 200 210 36
Additional schemes built in to meet the SERS allowance by 

Salix 

Strategic Maintenance 1,250 1,250 81

Street Lighting Column Replacement 2,000 2,135 26
Order placed with statutory delivery body had lengthy lead time, 

plus lag when invoicing

Street Lighting LED Replacement - Phase 4 600 600 0

Street Lighting Phase 3 LED Lanterns 250 250 6

Team Valley Flood Alleviation 40 40 0

Waste Infrastructure Grant 125 125 0

Highway Infrastructure Strategic Maintenance (TRANSPORT) 250 250 8

Highway Infrastructure Strategic Maintenance (CONSTRUCTION) 500 500 48

s106 Highways Works Borough wide 0 18 0 2015/16 Slippage linked to delivery of Saltwell 20mph scheme

Agresso Development 100 100 0

Digital Gateshead 450 450 0

Technology Plan: Infrastructure 2,785 2,875 179

Restructure of staffing and resources accelerated from future 

years

Technology Plan: Transformation Through Technology 1,500 1,042 7

Unified Comms Project delayed to 2017/18 due to manufacturer 

fault

School Basic Need & Condition Investment 1,529 2,183 36 Additional external funding

Infant Free School Meals Funding 0 40 7 Slippage due to works timing at school kitchen

Schools Devolved Formula Funding 0 150 134 Additional external funding

Sustainable 

Gateshead

CAE

CRS

CWL

P
age 75



APPENDIX 4

Vision 2030 Group Project Title Approved 

2016/17 

Allocation 

(£'000)

 Revised 

Q1 

Allocation 

(£'000)

2016/17 

Actual 

Spends to 

date (£'000)

Comments

Aids and Adaptations 1,500 1,500 292

Decent Homes – Backlog/Ad-hoc  Works 300 300 4

Decent Homes - Investment Programme 6,500 7,390 102 Slippage linked to works re-profiled into 2016/17

Door Entry System Upgrades 250 411 9 Slippage linked to works re-profiled into 2016/17

External Wall Insulation Works to Non-Traditional Properties 455 979 143 Slippage linked to works re-profiled into 2016/17

Fire Safety Works - General 100 157 0 Slippage linked to works re-profiled into 2016/17

Lift Replacement / Refurbishment 700 710 8 Slippage linked to works re-profiled into 2016/17

One off Heating Replacements 450 450 190

Programme Management 1,000 1,000 167

Regent Court Improvement Works 1,500 150 0

Extensive investigatory, design and procurement causing 

delays.

Replacement of Communal Electrics 250 260 0 Slippage linked to works re-profiled into 2016/17

Risers (Services) 400 400 0

Strategic Maintenance 2,000 2,000 0

T-fall Insulation 150 176 -20 Slippage linked to works re-profiled into 2016/17

Timber Replacements 100 105 0 Slippage linked to works re-profiled into 2016/17

Tower Block Energy Efficiency Improvements 2,000 2,000 0

Warden Call 250 250 0

Window Replacement 750 750 0

Catch up & Major Future Works - Back Boiler Renewal 1,000 1,000 0

Improvement Works - Boiler Plant Renewal 200 235 0 Slippage linked to works re-profiled into 2016/17

Equality Act Works 300 300 0

Delivery of Older Persons Strategy 200 0 0 Scheme complete

Estate Regeneration - Bleach Green 665 620 95 Delays in acquisition and demolition 

Estate Regeneration - Chandless 0 30 15

Demolition of substation delayed due to capacity issues in 

Design Services

Estate Regeneration - Clasper Village 600 472 132

Slippage due to private properties which don't have an 

acquisition date

Estate Regeneration - Dunston 650 300 6

Delay in confirmation of NHS funding has meant project will slip 

into 2017/18

New Build 0 0 30

South End Road Garage Clearance 0 84 12

Total Sustainable Gateshead 53,549 56,551 3,892

Grand Total 71,069 76,297 4,748

Sustainable 

Gateshead

HRA

P
age 76



APPENDIX 5 
 

 
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2016/17 

 
The 2016/17 Prudential Indicators were agreed by Council on 23 February 2016 
(column 1).  This is now compared with the 2016/17 actual position as at the end of 
the first quarter, 30th June 2016 (column 2).   
 
Certain Treasury Management indicators must be monitored throughout the year on a 
regular basis in order to avoid breaching agreed limits.  The capital expenditure and 
capital financing requirement indicators have been revised in line with the revised 
budget and none of the other approved Prudential Indicators set for 2016/17 have 
been breached. 
 

Capital Expenditure 

 
 

2016/17 
£000 

Reported Indicator 

2016/17 
£000 

Projection for the Year at Q1 

 
Non-HRA 

 
48,799 

 
54,268 

 
HRA 

 
22,270 

 
22,029 

 
Total 

 
71,069 

 
76,297 

 
To reflect the reported capital monitoring agreed by Council during the year  

 
 
 

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 

 
 

2016/17 
Reported Indicator 

2016/17 
Projection for the Year at Q1l 

 
Non-HRA 

 
13.77% 

 
N/A 

 
       HRA 

 
46.36% 

 
N/A 

 
 

Capital Financing Requirement  

 
 

2016/17 
£000 

Reported Indicator 

2016/17 
£000 

Projection for the Year at Q1 

 
Non-HRA 

 
286,297 

 
313,637 

 
       HRA 

 
345,505 

 
345,505 

 

 

Page 77



Authorised Limit for External Debt  

 
 

 2016/17 
£000 

Reported Indicator 

 
Borrowing 

  
750,000 

 
Other Long Term Liabilities 

  
0 

 
Total 

  
750,000 

 
Maximum YTD 24/06/2016 £617.319m  

 
 

 Operational Boundary for External Debt 

 
 

 2016/17 
£000 

Reported Indicator 

 
Borrowing 

 
725,000 

 
Other Long Term Liabilities 

  
0 

 
Total 

  
725,000 

 
Maximum YTD 24/06/16 £617.319m. 

 

The Council’s actual external debt at 31st March 2016 was £617.319 million.  It should 
be noted that actual external debt is not directly comparable to the Authorised Limit 
and Operational Boundary, since the actual external debt reflects the position at one 
point in time. 
 
Estimated Incremental Impact on Council Tax and Housing Rents 
 
This indicator is set at the time the Council’s budget is set. Therefore, there is no 
requirement for this Indicator to be monitored on a quarterly or annual basis. 
 
Adherence to CIPFA code on Treasury Management 
 
The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the 
Public Services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



 
UPPER LIMIT ON FIXED AND VARIABLE INTEREST RATES EXPOSURES 

 
Range 

2016/17 
£000 

Reported Indicator 

2016/17 
£000 

YTD Position 

 
 
Fixed Rate 

 
 

624,164 
357,170 

Act 24/06/16 
486,827 

 max 504,021 
min 475,758 

 
Variable 

 
152,227 
(30,000) 

Act 41,000 
max 41,000 
min18,000 

 
All within agreed limits. 
(Max and Min YTD.)  

 

Upper / Lower Limits for Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing  

 2016/17 
£000 

Reported Indicator 

2016/17 
£000 

Actual Position 
 Upper 

Limit 
Lower 
Limit 

Actual 
Percentage 

Maximum 
YTD 

Under 12 months 20% 0% 4.67% 6.18% 

12 months to 24 months 20% 0% 8.79% 10.50% 

24 months to 5 years 50% 0% 17.81% 19.61% 

5 years to 10 years 50% 0% 8.00% 8.06% 

10 years to 20 years 50% 0% 15.04% 15.04% 

20 years to 30 years 50% 0% 0.00% 0% 

30 years to 40 years 50% 0% 10.42% 10.51% 

40 years to 50 years 60% 0% 27.89% 27.89% 

50 years and above 30% 0% 4.24% 4.28% 

 
All within agreed limits.  

 

On 8 March 2007, Council agreed to the placing of investments for periods of longer than 
364 days in order to maximise investment income before forecasted cuts in interest rates.  
An upper limit was set and agreed as a new Prudential Indicator.   

 

Upper Limit on amounts invested beyond 364 days 
 

 
 

 2016/17 
£000 

Reported Indicator 

2016/17 
£000 

Actual Position 

2016/17 
£000 

Maximum YTD 

 
Investments 

 
15,000 

 
0 

 
0 

 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

12 July 2016 
 

REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION 
 
 

Jane Robinson, Chief Executive 

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and Governance 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval a number of amendments to the 

Constitution. 
 

2. The Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer are required to review the 
Constitution to ensure that its aims and principles are given full effect.  A 
number of areas have been identified where some amendment is necessary. 

 
3. The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report  

including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating 
their recommendation. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
4. It is recommended that Council approve the proposed changes to the 

Council’s Constitution as set out in Appendix 2 of the attached report. 

 

Page 81

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



    REPORT TO CABINET 

    12 July 2016 

 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Review of the Council’s Constitution 

 
REPORT OF:   Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and  
     Governance 

 
 
 Purpose of the Report  
 
1. This report asks the Cabinet to recommend the Council to approve a number of 

amendments to the Constitution. 
 

 Background  
 
2. The Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer are required to review the Constitution 

to ensure that its aims and principles are given full effect.  A number of areas have 
been identified where some amendment is necessary.  
 

 Proposal  
 
3. It is proposed to amend the Constitution as set out in Appendix 2.   

 
Recommendations 
 
4. It is recommended that the Cabinet ask the Council to agree the proposed changes 

to the Council’s Constitution as set out in Appendix 2. 
 
For the following reason: 
 
To ensure that the Constitution remains fit for purpose and that its aims and 
principles are given effect.   

 
  
 
 

 
CONTACT:  Mike Aynsley ext 2128   

 

Page 83



 
          APPENDIX 1 
 
 Policy Context  
 

1.  The Council is required by law (Local Government Act 2000) to prepare and   
 maintain a constitution.  Article 16.01 of the Council’s Constitution requires the 
 Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer to review the Constitution to ensure that its 
 aims and principles are given full effect. 

 
 Background 
 

2.  A number of amendments have been drafted which will maintain the effective 
 operation of the constitution, clarify certain aspects and keep it up to date.   

 
3.  The proposed amended sections of the constitution are set out in Appendix 2. 

 
 Consultation 
 

4.  No external consultation has been carried out. 
 
 Alternative Options 
  

5. No alternative options were considered as the Local Government Act 2000 requires 
 the Council to keep its constitution up to date. 

 
 Implications of Recommended Option  
 

6.  Resources 
a. Financial Implications - The Strategic Director, Corporate Resources 

confirms that there are no financial implications resulting from this report. 
b. Human Resources Implications – There are no human resources 

implications arising from this report. 
c. Property Implications – There are no property implications arising from this 

report. 
 

7.  Risk Management Implication - There are no risk management implications 
 arising from the recommended option. 

 
8.  Equality and Diversity Implications - There are no equality and diversity 

 implications arising from the recommended option. 
 

9.  Crime and Disorder Implications - There are no crime and disorder implications 
arising from the recommended option. 

 
10.  Health Implications – There are no health implications arising from the 

 recommended option. 
 

11.  Sustainability Implications - There are no sustainability implications arising from 
 the recommended option. 

 

Page 84



12.  Human Rights Implications - The Constitution already emphasises that the 
 Council will promote equal opportunities in carrying out its functions 

 
13.  Area and Ward Implications - There are no specific area and ward implications 

 arising from the recommended option. 
 

14.  Background Information - The current version of the Constitution.  
 
 
 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION 
 

Page Previous Wording Amended Wording Reason 

28 Article 11 – Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
11.02 Composition and Procedure 
 
a) Membership 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board will consist 
of 19 members as follows:- 

 

 Seven councillors (including the Chair 
and Vice Chair) 

 Strategic Director, Community Based 
Services 

 Strategic Director, Learning and Children 

 Director of Public Health 

 Two Gateshead clinical commissioning 
group representatives (the Chair of the 
Clinical Commissioning Group and one 
representative at Director level or 
equivalent) 

 A representative of the NHS England 

 A representative of the Local Healthwatch 

 A representative of Gateshead Voluntary 
Organisations Council 

 A representative of Gateshead NHS 
Foundation Trust 

 A representative of South Tyneside NHS 
Foundation Trust 

 A representative of Northumberland, 
Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 

 A representative of Gateshead 

Article 11 – Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
11.02 Composition and Procedure 
 
a) Membership 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board will consist 
of 18 members as follows:- 

 

 Seven councillors (including the Chair 
and Vice Chair) 

 Strategic Director, Care Wellbeing and 
Learning 

 Director of Public Health 

 Two Gateshead clinical commissioning 
group representatives (the Chair or 
Assistant Chair of the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and one 
representative at Director level or 
equivalent) 

 A representative of the NHS England 

 A representative of the Local 
Healthwatch 

 A representative of Gateshead 
Voluntary and Community Sector 

 A representative of Gateshead NHS 
Foundation Trust 

 A representative of South Tyneside NHS 
Foundation Trust 

 A representative of Northumberland, 
Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 

 
 
 
 
To reflect the current 
composition of the 
Board 

P
age 87



Federation of GP Practices 
 

 A representative of Gateshead of 
Gateshead Federation of GP Practices 

 

39 
 
 
 

Article 13 – Employees of the Council 
 
13.01 Management Structure 
 
(c) Strategic Directors 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
13.03 Functions of the Monitoring Officer 
 
(b) Receiving Reports 
 
The Monitoring Officer will receive and act on 
reports made by ethical standards officers 
and decisions of the case tribunals. 

 
(c) Conducting investigations 
 
The Monitoring Officer will conduct 
investigations into matters referred by ethical 
standards officers and make reports or 
recommendations in respect of them to the 
Audit and Standards Committee. 
 
 

Article 13 – Employees of the Council 
 
13.01 Management Structure 
 
(c) Strategic Directors 
 
Insert current posts, functions and areas of 
responsibility. 
 
 
 
13.03 Functions of the Monitoring Officer 
 
(b) Conducting Investigations 
 
The Monitoring Officer, following 
consultation with the Independent Person, 
will decide if a complaint of failure to comply 
with the Councillors’ Code of Conduct 
merits formal investigation and, if it does, to 
arrange such investigation. He/she will seek 
resolution of complaints without formal 
investigation wherever practicable and refer 
decisions about investigations to the Audit 
and Standards Committee where he/she 
feels that it is inappropriate for him/her to 
take the decision.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
To reflect the current 
management structure 
and functions and 
areas of responsibility. 
 
 
 
 
 
To reflect the current 
procedure. 

47 Article 16 – Review and Revisions to the 
Constitution 
 
16.02 Changes to the Constitution 

Article 16 – Review and Revisions to the 
Constitution 
 
16.02 Changes to the Constitution 

 
 
 
 

P
age 88



(a) Approval 
 

Changes to the constitution will only be 
approved by the full Council after 
consideration of a report by the Chief 
Executive and Monitoring Officer.  The report 
will state what consultation, if any, has been 
carried out in relation to the proposed 
change. Such consultation will be 
proportionate to the scale, scope and extent 
of change required.  In particular consultation 
will not be required where the changes only 
reflect the internal management 
arrangements of the Council or is of a 
technical nature (for example, to update 
references to legislation or to correct spelling 
or grammatical errors). 
 

(a) Approval 
 

Subject to Article 13.01, changes to the 
constitution will only be approved by the full 
Council after consideration of a report by 
the Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer.  
The report will state what consultation, if 
any, has been carried out in relation to the 
proposed change. Such consultation will be 
proportionate to the scale, scope and extent 
of change required.  In particular 
consultation will not be required where the 
changes only reflect the internal 
management arrangements of the Council 
or is of a technical nature (for example, to 
update references to legislation or to correct 
spelling or grammatical errors). 
 

 
 
To clarify the wording 
of the article in respect 
of the power to make 
changes to the 
constitution. 

48 Article 17 – Suspension, Interpretation 
and Publication of the Constitution 
 
17.01 Publication 

 
(b) Copies of the constitution will be 

available for inspection at Council 
offices, on the Council’s website, 
libraries and other appropriate locations, 
and may be purchased on payment of a 
reasonable fee. 

 

Article 17 – Suspension, Interpretation 
and Publication of the Constitution 
 
17.02 Publication 

 
(b) Copies of the constitution will be 

available for inspection at the Civic 
Centre and on the Council’s website, 
and may be purchased on payment of a 
reasonable fee. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
The constitution is 
available to view in 
public libraries and 
other council buildings 
through the Council’s 
internet service. 

52 Annex 1A – Non-Executive Functions 
 
Health and Wellbeing Board: 
Number of Cabinet Members 3 
Number of Non Cabinet Members 4 

Annex 1A – Non-Executive Functions 
 
Health and Wellbeing Board: 
Number of Cabinet Members 3 
Number of Non Cabinet Members 4 

 
 
To reflect the current 
composition of the 
Board. 

P
age 89



Total 19 (the total includes 12 non councillor 
members) 

Total 18 (the total includes 11 non councillor 
members) 
 

57 Schedule 1 – Non-Executive Functions – 
Delegations to Council Bodies 
 
3. Regulatory Committee 
 
(ii) Where the Committee exercises the 
function of determining any application or 
similar matter, it will do so through a Sub-
Committee of five members established by it.  

Schedule 1 – Non-Executive Functions – 
Delegations to Council Bodies 
 
3. Regulatory Committee 
 
Delete delegation. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
This function is now 
exercised by the full 
committee. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
90 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Schedule 5 – Executive Functions 
Delegated to Managers 
 
Part 1 – Delegations to Individual 
Managers 
 
4.   Strategic Director, Corporate Services 

and Governance 
 
 

Service Director, Legal, Democratic and 
Property Services 
 
(1) To agree terms for the acquisition of land 

and property (for which there is budgetary 
provision) or for the disposal of land and 
property (including legal estates and 
interests) to secure compliance with the 
Council’s policies up to a value of 
£50,000 in each case, or up to a value of 
£250,000 following consultation with the 
Strategic Director, Corporate Resources. 

Schedule 5 – Executive Functions 
Delegated to Managers 
 
Part 1 – Delegations to Individual 
Managers 
 
4.   Strategic Director, Corporate 

Services and Governance 
 
 

Service Director, Legal, Democratic and 
Property Services 
 
(1) To agree terms for the acquisition of 

land and property (for which there is 
budgetary provision) or for the disposal 
of land and property (including legal 
estates and interests) to secure 
compliance with the Council’s policies 
up to a value of £100,000 in each case, 
or up to a value of £250,000 following 
consultation with the Strategic Director, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To keep in line with the 
general movement in 
property values and 
limit the number of 
routine reports to 
Cabinet where the 
asset sits in the 
Tenanted Non-
Operational Portfolio 

P
age 90



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
92 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
92 

  
(3) To agree terms for the granting or 

acceptance of any tenancy not exceeding 
ten years, and any occupational licence 
other than any housing accommodation 
and garages used for domestic purposes, 
at a rent not exceeding £50,000 per 
annum exclusive of rates in each case. 

 
 
 
 
6.  Assistant Chief Executive 
 
(1) To approve individual applications for 

financial assistance from the Economic 
Growth Reserve, following consultation 
with the Leader of the Council, Strategic 
Director, Corporate Resources and 
Strategic Director, Corporate Services 
and Governance.  

 
 
 
 
 
6. Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Service Director, Economic and Housing 
Growth 
 
(1) In accordance with agreed procedures 

and eligibility criteria, in consultation with 
the Service Director Customer and 
Financial Services, to approve 
applications for financial assistance to 

Corporate Resources. 
 

(3) To agree terms for the granting or 
acceptance of any tenancy not 
exceeding twenty five years, and any 
occupational licence other than any 
housing accommodation and garages 
used for domestic purposes, at a rent 
not exceeding £75,000 per annum 
exclusive of rates in each case. 

 
 
Transfer delegations as follows: 
 
2. Strategic Director, Communities and 
Environment 
 
(10) To approve individual applications for 

financial assistance from the Economic 
Growth Reserve, following consultation 
with the Leader of the Council, 
Strategic Director, Corporate 
Resources and Strategic Director, 
Corporate Services and Governance.
  

 
Transfer delegations as follows: 
 
2. Strategic Director, Communities and 
Environment 
 
Service Director, Economic and Housing 
Growth 
 
(1) In accordance with agreed procedures 

and eligibility criteria, in consultation with 

(for which there is a 
separate delegation). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To reflect the current 
management structure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To reflect the current 
management structure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 91



businesses, or individual residents of the 
Borough seeking employment, training or 
educational opportunities, in the following 
categories: 
 
(a) Financial assistance grants 
(b) Wage subsidy 

  
(2)  To deal with applications received for 

financial assistance, including grants and 
loans, as defined in the Council’s 
Housing Strategy and Financial 
Assistance Policy. 
 

(3) In relation to the Council’s Housing 
Strategy and Financial Assistance Policy, 
following consultation with the Panel 
comprising the Service Director, 
Economic and Housing Growth and two 
members of the Council: 

 
(a) to approve applications for loans   

for relocation and/or renewal that 
fall outside of the Council’s 
approved loan policies and 
procedures; 

(b) to agree a fair equity loan 
repayment figure in cases where 
house prices have substantially 
increased or decreased; 

(c) to approve requests for moves 
from clearance areas other than 
in  accordance with the Council’s 
agreed phasing of such 
clearance. 

 

the Service Director Customer and 
Financial Services, to approve 
applications for financial assistance to 
businesses, or individual residents of the 
Borough seeking employment, training 
or educational opportunities, in the 
following categories: 
 
(a) Financial assistance grants 
(b) Wage subsidy 

  
(2)  To deal with applications received for 

financial assistance, including grants 
and loans, as defined in the Council’s 
Housing Strategy and Financial 
Assistance Policy. 
 

(3) In relation to the Council’s Housing 
Strategy and Financial Assistance 
Policy, following consultation with the 
Panel comprising the Service Director, 
Economic and Housing Growth and two 
members of the Council: 

 
(a) to approve applications for loans   

for relocation and/or renewal that 
fall outside of the Council’s 
approved loan policies and 
procedures; 

(b) to agree a fair equity loan 
repayment figure in cases where 
house prices have substantially 
increased or decreased; 

(c) to approve requests for moves 
from clearance areas other than 
in  accordance with the Council’s 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 92



(4) To approve financial assistance in the 
form of occupier incentives to business 
centre occupiers or prospective 
occupiers and also to award financial 
assistance to enterprises participating in 
business support programmes. 

agreed phasing of such 
clearance. 

 
(4) To approve financial assistance in the 

form of occupier incentives to business 
centre occupiers or prospective 
occupiers and also to award financial 
assistance to enterprises participating 
in business support programmes. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

110 Access to Information Rules 
 
14. Schedule of Decisions 
 
14.5 The schedule of decisions will be 

published as widely as possible. In 
particular, it will be: 

 published on the Internet; 

 distributed to libraries; and 

 sent to every member of the 
Council. 

 

Access to Information Rules 
 
14. Schedule of Decisions 
 
14.5 The schedule of decisions will be 

published as widely as possible. In 
particular, it will be: 

 published on the Internet; and 

 sent to every member of the 
Council. 

 

 
 
 
 
The schedule of 
decisions is available to 
view in public libraries 
through the Council’s 
internet service. 

117 The Freedom of Information Act 2000 - 
Statement  
 
What is a Publication Scheme? 
 
4. The Council’s publication scheme is 

available on the Council’s website 
www.gateshead.gov.uk and a printed 
copy is available at the Civic Centre, 
libraries  and other council buildings 
during normal opening hours. 

The Freedom of Information Act 2000 - 
Statement  
 
What is a Publication Scheme? 
 
4. The Council’s publication scheme is 

available on the Council’s website 
www.gateshead.gov.uk. 

 
 
 
 
 
The scheme is 
available to view in 
public libraries and 
other council buildings 
through the Council’s 
internet service. 
 

170 Employee Recruitment Rules Employee Recruitment Rules  

P
age 93

http://www.gateshead.gov.uk/
http://www.gateshead.gov.uk/


 
9. Definitions 
 
‘deputy chief officer’ means a deputy 
director; 

 
9. Definitions 
 
‘deputy chief officer’ means a deputy 
strategic director or service director; 
 

 
 
 
To reflect the current 
management structure. 

251 Part 6  
 
Councillors’ Allowances Scheme 
 
N/A 

Part 6  
 
Councillors’ Allowances Scheme 
 
Insert current scheme 

 
 
 
 
To insert the current 
scheme approved by 
Council on 17 March 
2016. 

256 Part 7 – Management Structure 
 
N/A 

Part 7 – Management Structure 
 
Amend Part 7 to reflect the current 
management structure. 

 
 
To reflect changes in 
the management 
structure since the last 
review of the 
constitution. 

 

P
age 94



      COUNCIL MEETING  

14 July 2016 
 

GATESHEAD COUNCIL 
 

REPORT FROM THE CABINET 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

This is the report from the Cabinet. Its purpose is to report on issues for the period May 
- July 2016. 
 
PROGRESS ON KEY ISSUES 
 

2. PEOPLE 
 
Children and Young People 

 
Foster Care Fortnight  
Every year the Fostering Network runs a national campaign to raise the profile of 
fostering and recruit new carers. This year’s event took place between the 16 and 29 
May and the theme was “Time to Foster, Time to Care.” The Council’s Fostering 
Service always takes advantage of this national campaign in order to maximise interest 
in becoming a foster carer with the Council, as well as showing our existing carers how 
much they are valued. 
 
A campaign was therefore undertaken with the objectives to: 

 raise the profile of the service; 

 attract new enquiries; and 

 value our existing carers. 
 
Activities included: 

 bridge banners on Felling bypass and the Civic Centre perimeter fencing; 

 information in Council Info/on plasma screens in the Civic Centre; 

 information evening held for anyone interested in becoming a foster carer;   

 radio advertising to promote information evening;  

 “Gateshead Now” direct email;  

 social media campaign; and  

 coffee morning and support group for current foster carers. 
 
The service will continue to use the “Could you…would you…will you?” theme 
throughout the summer and autumn to raise general awareness of the Council’s need 
for both foster carers and adoptive families.  Adopting a joint approach will maximise 
exposure for both services and ensure value for money is achieved for any “paid for” 
advertising.     
 
The social media campaign underpinned the other channels and six posts were 
published on the Gateshead Fostering and Adoption Website page during “Foster Care 
Fortnight”.  These posts were seen over 2,600 times, and generated 177 interactions ie 
likes, shares and comments. 
 

Page 95

Agenda Item 9



The coffee morning for Gateshead’s existing foster carers was attended by nearly 70 
carers; a record number of attendees for a session of this type.  Our carers were able 
to: 

 find out more about “Foster Talk” our new provider of independent support for 
 foster carers;   

 find out about upcoming training and support groups; 

 meet members of the service including business support staff and new marketing 
 and recruitment officer; 

 be thanked, in person, for all the work they do during “Foster Care Fortnight”; and  

 network with other carers as well as the fostering service.  
 
There was also an information evening held, which was attended by eight sets of 
potential foster carers as a direct result of the campaign.  
 
There was an increase in traffic on the Council’s website during the May campaign 
period and an increase in the number of enquiries into the service, with enquiries more 
than doubling compared to the previous month. 
 
The Fostering Service will continue to undertake marketing and recruitment activities 
throughout the year and plan to support future “Foster Care Fortnight” national 
campaigns; building on this year’s approach to further increase enquiries. 
 
Brandling Primary School – Outcome of Inspection 
This school was inspected on 24 and 25 May 2016 by Ofsted and judged to be 
outstanding in all areas. 
 
The inspectors have reported that “the inspirational leadership of the head teacher has 
led to a culture of high expectations, where pupils learn exceptionally well”.  They noted 
that disadvantaged pupils make as much progress as others in school and their 
attainment exceeded that of their classmates and all pupils nationally in 2015, 
particularly in reading and writing. 
 
The inspectors noted that the governing body challenges leaders rigorously about the 
school’s performance and visit regularly to see how well pupils are learning.  It was 
also noted that pupils’ behaviour in lessons and around the school is impressive, that 
they are exceptionally polite and well-mannered, and attitudes to learning are 
exemplary. 
 
Outcome of Short Quality Screening Inspection 
Gateshead’s Youth Offending Team was subject to a short quality screening inspection 
from 23-25 May 2016.   
 
HM Inspectorate of Probation report says “we found that work to reduce reoffending, to 
protect the public, protect children and young people, and to make sure sentences 
were served, was of very high quality. It was encouraging to see that the work of the 
Youth Offending Team had improved substantially in all areas since our previous 
inspection in 2010. Staff were committed and enthusiastic, and they had a detailed 
knowledge of the children and young people they were working with.”   
 
The following key strengths were also highlighted in the report: 

 High quality initial assessments of children and young people provided a firm 
 foundation for work to reduce future offending. 

Page 96



 Vulnerability assessments were of good quality, informing the work that needs to be 
 undertaken to protect children and young people. 

 Planning for work to reduce offending, manage the risk of harm posed to others, 
 and address safeguarding and vulnerability was very good. 

 Case managers engaged very well with children and young people and their 
 parents/carers, taking diversity factors and barriers to engagement into account. 

 Management oversight was effective in ensuring the quality of the work. 
 
There was only one area requiring improvement; in a small number of cases pre-
sentence reports failed to give sufficient attention to considering suitable alternatives to 
custody.  
 
Health and Wellbeing 

 
Keep Active Keep Well 
The Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group recently extended the 
current Physical Activity Step Down programme (previously ‘Exercise on Referral’) until 
31 March with the intention to extend further. 

 
The commission, worth £70,000, will support the employment of 2 Physical Activity 
Specialists within the Sport, Physical Activity & Health Development team, working 
across a number of leisure facilities. 

 
This new pilot, called Keep Active, Keep Well, will support patients with long term 
conditions such as heart disease, Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disorder and 
diabetes and will include either a 12 week behavioural change for exercise programme 
or a motivational interviewing support via telephone. 
 
Gateshead’s Better Care Fund (BCF) submission for 2016/17 
The Better Care Fund (BCF) is a pooled fund for councils and NHS organisations to 
jointly plan and deliver local services that support the integration of health and social 
care. 2016/17 has been identified within our Gateshead Plan as a transition year 
whereby schemes are aligned with emerging models of care such as the care homes 
and emergency care vanguards, out-of-hospital care, the redesign of community health 
services, prevention and enablement services. Gateshead’s BCF pooled fund for 
2016/17 is £16.488m. 

 
NHS England has recently indicated that Gateshead’s BCF submission for 2016/17 has 
been given a draft rating of “fully approved”. Final approval ratings will be confirmed in 
due course. 
 
Adult Social Care 
 
Shadon House – Outstanding Judgement 
Shadon House has been judged as Outstanding following a recent Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) unannounced inspection.  Shadon House is one of the Council’s 
promoting independent centres providing support for people who struggle to live alone, 
and enabling people to live independent lives. 

 
The inspection found that the centre was Good in the categories of Safe and Effective, 
and Outstanding in the categories of Caring, Responsive, and Well-led, leading to an 
overall Outstanding judgement. 

Page 97



 
The inspector noted that the registered manager provided strong, clear leadership and 
ensured an enabling and person-centred culture was firmly embedded in the service.  
There was also clear commitment to continuous improvement of the service and 
evidence of innovation and creativity in all areas, such as pioneering projects as ‘Hen 
Power’, and ‘Mum’s test’ which is where staff members ask their own parents or loved 
ones to identify the areas and issues that would be important to them, if they needed to 
come into the service. 

 
The inspector highlighted the strong emphasis on ensuring people had meaningful 
occupation and activity throughout the day and evening.  People’s relatives informed 
the inspection team that they were very impressed with the quality of care provided and 
spoke of the positive impact that a stay at Shadon House had on their loved ones.   
 

3. PLACE AND ECONOMY 
 
Environment and Transport 
 
The Land of Oak and Iron Visitor Centre  
The Land of Oak & Iron Visitor Centre is being developed by the Council in partnership 
with Groundwork NE & Cumbria.  The proposed £1.2m investment in Winlaton Mill 
represents the largest single investment to date in rural Gateshead in response to the 
Rural Economic Strategy.  Funding will largely come from external sources with 
Groundwork NE & Cumbria responsible for making applications and for ongoing 
revenue and maintenance costs. Design work is being undertaken by the in-house 
team.   
 
Economy 
 
Developing the Social Enterprise Sector in Gateshead  
The following events and activities are taking place which will further social enterprise 
in Gateshead: 

 A visit by Social Enterprise UK, the national infrastructure body for social enterprise 
(13-14 July).  This event will showcase social enterprise, culminating in the “Social 
Enterprise Summit” bringing together social entrepreneurs, supporters and 
stakeholders for a change to network.  

 The North East Social Enterprise Festival, hosted by Social Enterprise Acumen, will 
be held at Sage Gateshead on 29 October, showcasing social enterprise from 
across the region.  

 A research project will be undertaken in collaboration with Leeds University to 
explore the social enterprise ecosystem.  

 
Region Värmland Market Visit to Gateshead 
The Council and Sunne Municipality, based in Region Värmland, Sweden have signed 
a ‘Commitment to Collaboration’ setting out their intention to develop mutually 
beneficial trade and investment activity over an 18 month period.  As a result of this 
agreement four Gateshead-based digital technology companies visited Region 
Värmland in November 2015, to explore business opportunities in Sweden. Each of the 
companies has benefitted significantly as a result of participating in the market visit, 
increasing their knowledge of Nordic market sectors, establishing contacts with 
Swedish digital technology companies, and directly supporting a number of digital 
projects via Sunne Municipality. 

Page 98



 
In May 2016, the Council hosted six visitors from companies based in Region 
Värmland, delivering a programme of activity aimed at promoting Gateshead as a 
business destination. As a result of participating in the visit one software company has 
expressed an interest in setting up an office in Gateshead and another is developing a 
joint project with Northumbria University, as well as working collaboratively with a 
Gateshead based digital sector firm in the field of virtual reality technology. 
 
Gateshead Regeneration Partnership, Training and Employment Outcomes  
The Gateshead Regeneration Partnership, between the Council, the developer 
Galliford Try and the housing provider Home Group, is building homes in Saltwell and 
Birtley. As well as providing new, spacious, energy efficient homes for families, the 
Partnership is also benefitting the local economy by ensuring that the developer uses 
local businesses in the supply chain, sustains employment for local people, and 
provides training and apprenticeships for local students and residents. 

 
Housing 

 
Ravensworth Road Update 
The Council appointed Keepmoat Homes to redevelop the former Ravensworth Road 
(and Rocket) site in Dunston, and so far, a new supermarket and older persons’ 
accommodation have been built. In May 2016, construction started on a new unit on 
the site for Boots pharmacy, to allow them to move out of Tower Court, the last 
remaining block of the old estate. Once this happens, in September 2016, the Council 
will demolish Tower Court to make way for Keepmoat to build 45 new family homes 
starting next year. The final phase will be the development of a new medical centre, 
which has recently received NHS funding approval, subject to finding an investor. 
 
Assisted Living Scheme, Winlaton 
The Council has been successful in its bid to the Care and Support Specialised 
Housing (CASSH) Fund. This award is for £532,000 towards the cost of the 
development of enhanced specialist housing schemes for people with learning 
disabilities and autism, and their elderly carers.  
 
The scheme is situated on three sites in the heart of Winlaton village, close to shops, 
transport and local amenities. It will provide flexible living with the right level of care and 
support suited to the individual needs.  
 
The completed units will form part of the Council’s housing stock managed by the 
Gateshead Housing Company. Therefore, they will also help sustain the Housing 
Revenue Account. 
 
Because of the age profile of some of the carers it is considered that this provision will 
prolong the independence of the client group through providing on site help, support 
and care and also prevent potential longer term residential care by providing that 
support. This will help support the sustainability of adult social care by reducing future 
call on budgets for residential care. 
 
The proposed developments incorporate the use of communal shared spaces to 
enhance wellbeing.  At Ramsay Street a communal ‘walled garden’ has been 
incorporated, at Half Fields Road there is a ‘shared garden’ which can be developed by 
residents, whilst at Derwent View the area benefits from attractive surroundings of 

Page 99



trees and green space. They are all aimed to provide a safe, risk managed, 
environment that can be enhanced by specialist support, equipment and programmes.   

 
The specific sites are: 

 Ramsay Street, Winlaton 
This is a two storey development comprising of a block of flats with six one 
bedroom flats, one studio flat and one concierge flat with associated amenities and 
courtyard ‘walled’ garden.  In addition, there is one two storey high two bedroom 
house.  The development is located within a mixed use area providing opportunities 
for integration within the community 

 

 Half Fields Road, Winlaton  
This development comprises of a pair of single storey semi-detached two bedroom 
wheelchair friendly bungalows with associated amenities located in a residential 
area. The proposed layout with a shared garden provides a secluded and safe 
setting for enjoyment and interaction between residents. 

 

 Derwent View, Winlaton 
This is a two storey high block of flats comprising of five one bedroom flats located 
in a residential area.  The building is surrounded by a ‘green belt garden’ that 
provides a secluded and safe setting for enjoyment and interaction between 
residents. 

 
4. COMMUNITIES 

 
Communities and Volunteering 

 
Queens 90th Birthday Celebrations  
Three local groups held an event and lit beacons across Gateshead on 21 April as part 
of the Queen’s birthday celebrations. 

 
John Bell from Gateshead celebrated his 90th birthday by pressing the button to light up 
Gateshead Millennium Bridge in red, white and blue. A parade including 101 Regiment 
Royal Artillery also took place on the Bridge on 12 June. 

 
St Mary’s Heritage Centre hosted a celebratory coffee morning on 11 June which was 
free to the public. Several other events also took place across the Borough. 

 
Volunteers’ Month 
Volunteers’ month was held during June 2016. The main purpose was to raise the 
profile of volunteering and to recognise the contribution made by volunteers in 
Gateshead. 

 
The four themes for the month were young people, environmental tidy up activities, 
charities, voluntary and community groups, and older people. 

 
As in previous volunteers’ months, £10,000 from the Capacity Building Find is available 
for groups to apply with grants up to £300 per application. 

 
An event was held in Trinity Square on 24 June to celebrate the end of the month and 
a totaliser was live during June to record the volunteer hours contributed throughout 
the month. 

Page 100



 
Community Ownership and Management of Assets Programme 
The Council successfully applied to be part of the Community Ownership and 
Management of Assets programme in 2015.  

 
The programme is operated by Locality, on behalf of DCLG, and is aimed at supporting 
community organisations to take over responsibility for running community buildings. 

 
In the first phase of the programme the Council applied for support to assist the 
following asset transfers: 

 

Building Current position 

Dunston Activity Centre Tenancy at Will signed 

Gateshead Indoor Bowling Centre Tenancy at Will signed 

Winlaton Community Centre Lease signed  

Low Fell Library Lease signed   

Winlaton Library Lease signed  

Sunderland Road Library Lease signed    

Emmaville Hall, Crawcrook Lease signed 

Saltwell Park Boat House / Training 

Centre 

No clear timescale for implementation 

Whickham Thorns Outdoor Activity 

Centre 

Tenancy at Will signed 

Barley Mow Village Hall Implementation by 31 March 2017 

 
The Council has applied for additional support on behalf of Gateshead Scouts who 
have recently taken over responsibility for Whickham Thorns Activity Centre. 

 
Culture, Sport and Leisure 
 
Library Service Work with Children and Young People  
The library service continues to develop a range of new initiatives for children and 
young people. These include a Books on Prescription for young people – special 
collections of books aimed at supporting and helping children and young people with 
mental health challenges. The service has successfully rolled-out a Chatterbooks 
project, developing 10 reading groups in schools across the borough. This is an 
initiative to promote reading for pleasure in schools. The library service has also been 
identified as a ‘mentoring authority’ for its excellent work with young people by The 
Reading Agency. 

 
  

Page 101



Library Service – Digital Library Service Developments 
Digital library services have continued to be developed. In April, the service was invited 
to participate in Maker Month, an initiative co-ordinated by the Centre for Life. Activities 
included robotics workshops and air powered rocket cars. All libraries, Council and 
volunteered managed, are now equipped to provide free Wi-Fi access for the public, 
following a grant from the Arts Council. The number of e-books lent by the service 
continues to grow, with total issues of e-books and e-audio now over 10,000 per year. 
The range of e-books is gradually improving as more publishers release titles for 
libraries to lend.  

 
Chopwell Library Relocation 
Chopwell Library has successfully relocated into the premises of Chopwell Children’s 
Centre, which is located in Chopwell Primary School. The new premises are fully 
integrated and will allow close working between the children centre and easy use of the 
library by the school. The library offers an excellent range of stock and ICT facilities.  
 
Tall Ships Race 2018  
Over the next two years, a network of sailing ambassadors will support regional 
activities to promote and raise awareness of sail training as an activity that all young 
people can be involved in. 

 
The Inclusive Futures (IF) programme, which is hosted by the Council’s Sport, Physical 
Activity and Health Development Team have selected one of the projects young 
volunteers to be Gateshead’s Sail Training Ambassador. The ambassadors will 
undertake a range of shore based training and voyages as well as attending events. 

 
The programme was officially launched on 9 May by HRH Princess Royal. 

 
Legacy Games  
Gateshead International Stadium hosted the 7th Legacy Games event on 12-13 May. 
The event engaged over 250 young people with disabilities in sport and physical 
activity and was supported by 60 officials and volunteers. 

 
The event is the qualifier for the National Championships held in Warwick in June and 
is supported by Gateshead College students and Gateshead Inclusive Futures 
volunteers. 

 
Sport England Inspired Facilities – Gateshead Awards 
The Council supported the Gateshead Indoor Bowling Centre with a bid to Sport 
England’s Inspired Facilities Fund for £75,000. Sport England has confirmed that the 
bid was successful and will be used to fund a replacement boiler system and to 
refurbish and modernise the café and kitchen area. Gateshead Community Rowing 
Club also received £75,000 to improve security on their site. Cedars Academy received 
an ‘in principle’ offer of funding to help fund a new sports hall. 

 
Officers are continuing to work with Felling Magpies FC and Greenside Cricket Club 
who were unsuccessful in this round to attract funding from other sources. 

 
Department of Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) White Paper 
The Culture White Paper was published by DCMS in March 2016. This is the first paper 
on culture in over 50 years. 

 

Page 102



The main areas of policy include increased participation in culture, cultural 
communities, international profile and cultural investment. 

 
A few of the key recommendations are as follows: 

 

 Gateshead will be working with partners to develop an action plan for cultural 
 inclusion for children and young people. 

 Consider viable models for a dedicated cultural volunteering programme in the 
 Borough. 

 Continue to engage/explore opportunities through the NE Culture Partnership. 

 Develop NewcastleGateshead Culture 2030 programme to host world class events. 

 Identify historic areas which could benefit from heritage led regeneration. 
 

Sport England Strategy 
In December 2015, the Government published Sporting Future: A New Strategy for an 
Active Nation. The strategy has 5 main outcomes which are physical wellbeing, mental 
wellbeing, individual development, social and community development, and economic 
development. 

 
In May 2016 Sport England published their new strategy, Sport England: Towards and 
Active Nation 2016 – 2021. 

 
Key features of the new strategy include funding to get young people active from the 
age of 5, piloting new ways of working, investing up to £30m in a new volunteering 
strategy to attract a new and more diverse range of volunteers. 

 
Sport England has 7 new investment programmes to directly respond to the policy 
direction. 

 
Sport England are also to launch a new fund of up to £1m to support prospective hosts 
in developing their bids to bring major events to England plus a further £2m through the 
Major Events Engagement Fund. 
 

5. CONCLUSION 
The Council is asked to note this report.  

 

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

14 July 2016 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

NOTICE OF MOTION 
  

Councillor P Mole will move the following motion: 
 

“Council notes that: 
 

We are proud to live in a diverse and tolerant society.  Racism, xenophobia and hate crimes 
have no place in our country.  Gateshead Council condemns racism, xenophobia and hate 
crimes unequivocally.  We will not allow hate to become acceptable. 
 
We congratulate the anti-racism charity Show Racism the Red Card on their 20th anniversary 
and commend their work here in Gateshead to provide young people and adults with a safe 
space to explore the world around them whilst providing an alternative world view. 
 
Show Racism the Red Card tell us that their education workers have witnessed for some 
years growing anti-immigrant sentiment and anti-Muslim hatred to add to the older more 
established racisms.  They have highlighted their concerns that migrant communities are 
being demonised for societal problems which have varied and complex causes and that the 
recent referendum on the EU was dominated by anti-immigrant sentiment leading many to 
see it as a referendum on our borders. 
 
We cannot let the EU referendum result boost the confidence of those with racist ideas and 
attitudes, we cannot allow neo-Nazi organisations to grow and descend upon our 
communities, we must all stand firm in challenging racism where we see it. 
 
We want to reassure all people living in Gateshead, with our proud heritage of migration and 
diversity, that they are valued members of our community. 
 
Gateshead Council resolves to: 
 
1) Invite Show Racism the Red Card to address a future meeting of the Council 
 
2) Seek to ensure local bodies like Show Racism the Red Card and other programmes have 
the support and resources needed to fight and prevent racism and xenophobia, so as to 
enable them to be able to offer their programme to every school in Gateshead 
 
3) Take action to combat racism and xenophobia.” 
 
 

Proposed:   Councillor P Mole 
 

Seconded by:  Councillor L Kirton 
Supported by:  Councillor A Wheeler 
    Councillor B Goldsworthy  
    Councillor J Lee   

 

Page 105

Agenda Item 10a



This page is intentionally left blank



  COUNCIL MEETING 

14 July 2016 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

 

NOTICE OF MOTION – ALTERATION (in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 12.2) 

Councillor Paul Foy will move and Councillor Jonathan Wallace will second the 
following altered motion: 

This council believes Gateshead is stronger because of its diverse communities and 
that society benefits from this diversity. 
 
This council believes that the borough benefits from residents with different 
ethnicities, nationalities, religions and sexual orientations. We welcome the positive 
contributions of all residents, regardless of background, to life in Gateshead. We 
therefore wish to reassure all people living in Gateshead, with our proud heritage of 
migration and diversity, that they are valued members of our community. 

This council believes that acceptance and the celebration of diversity are the 
hallmarks of modern society and that no one should be forced into conformity. We 
therefore express concern at the significant increase of hate crime reported since the 
referendum on 23rd June. Racism, xenophobia and hate crime of any nature have no 
place in our society.  Gateshead Council condemns racism, xenophobia and hate 
crimes unequivocally.   
 
We congratulate the anti-racism charity Show Racism the Red Card on their 20th 
anniversary and commend their work here in Gateshead in providing young people 
and adults with high quality anti-racism education. 
 
Show Racism the Red Card tell us that their education workers have witnessed for 
some years growing anti-immigrant sentiment and anti-Muslim hatred to add to the 
older more established racisms.  They have highlighted their concerns that migrant 
communities are being demonised for societal problems which have varied and 
complex causes and that the recent referendum on the EU was dominated by anti-
immigrant sentiment leading many to see it as a referendum on our borders. 
 
We cannot let the EU referendum result boost the confidence of those with racist 
ideas and attitudes, we cannot allow far-right organisations to grow and descend 
upon our communities, we must all stand firm in challenging racism where we see it. 
 
Gateshead Council resolves to: 
 
1) Support action by Northumbria Police to tackle hate crime; 
 

Agenda Item 10a(i) 

Page 107



2) Invite Show Racism the Red Card to address a future meeting of the Council; 
 
3) Assist organisations like Show Racism the Red Card and other programmes that 
promote acceptance and diversity to access the support and resources needed to 
fight and prevent racism and xenophobia, so as to enable them to offer their 
programmes to every school in Gateshead; 
 
4) Take positive action to promote diversity and acceptance, including information on 
reporting hate crime in Council News and on the Council’s website. 
 

Page 108



 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

14 July 2016 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

NOTICE OF MOTION 
  
Councillor L Caffrey will move the following motion: 
 

“Council notes that: 
 

 Women born in the 1950s have been hit particularly hard by the equalisation of pension 
age and they have had very little time in order to prepare properly for the changes, being 
given little or no notice so were unable to be prepared. 
 

 The issue of fairness has been largely ignored in these proposals. 
 

 A petition to Parliament with nearly 200,000 signatures resulted in a debate in 
Westminster Hall with many examples of the impact of these changes to women shared. 
 

 Local MPs have highlighted the issues nationally representing many constituents affected 
by these changes. 
 

 Government have not amended the proposals at all yet this issue is continuing to be of 
concern to huge numbers of women approaching pension age. 

 
Council resolves to write to the Secretary of State to express concerns for the hundreds of 
women in Gateshead affected by these unfair changes highlighting the concerns raised in the 
debate and urging the government to compensate properly for the changes. 
 
 

Proposed:   Councillor L Caffrey 
 
Seconded by:  Councillor J Green 
Supported by:  Councillor P Mole 
    Councillor J Lee 
    Councillor B Goldsworthy   

 

Page 109

Agenda Item 10b



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 26 May 2016
	5 Recruitment of Chief Executive and Interim Arrangements
	6 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017/18 - 2021/22
	Item 6 - Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017/18 - 2021/22 - Appendix
	Item 6 - Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017/18 - 2021/22 - Appendix 2

	7 Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators 2016/17 - First Quarter Review
	Item 7 - Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators 2016/17 - First Quarter Review - Appendix
	Item 7 - Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators 2016/17 - First Quarter Review - Appendices 2,3 & 4
	Item 7 - Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators 2016/17 - First Quarter Review - Appendix 5

	8 Review of the Constitution
	Item 8 - Review of the Constitution - Appendix
	Item 8 - Review of the Constitution - Appendix 2

	9 Report from the Cabinet
	10a Notice of Motion - Hate Crime
	 10a(i) Notice of Motion - Alteration
	10b Notice of Motion - Changes to Pensions

